TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
APRIL 14, 2016 — 12:00 p.m. — Assembly Room 1

Tri-City Medical Center, 4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

The Committee may make recommendations
to the Board on any of the items listed below,
unless the item is specifically labeled “Informational Only”

Page Time Requestor/
Agenda Item Nos. Allotted | Presenter
Call To Order/Opening Remarks 2 min. Chair
Approval of Agenda 1-2 2 min. Chair
Public Comments 5 min. Standard
NOTE: During the Committee’s consideration of any Agenda item,
members of the public also have the right to address the Committee at that
time regarding that item.
Ratification of minutes of the March 2016 Meeting 3-10 2 min. Committee
New Business
Quality Outcomes Dashboard 11-14 5 min. Committee
Priority Project Reports 40 min. | Committee
1. Falls 15
2. Pressure Ulcer Prevention 16
3. Severe Sepsis Management 17
4. Hospital Wide Throughput 18
Consideration and Possible Approval of Policies and Procedures 19-20
Patient Care Services
1. Care for Recalcitrant Children Policy 21-27
2. Child Passenger Restraint System Education Policy 28-29
3. Diluting IV Medication for IV Push Administration Procedure 30
4. Immediate Use Sterilization, Intraoperative 31-34
5. Micromedex Carenotes Procedure- Tracked Changes 35-38
Micromedex Carenotes Procedure- Clean Copy 39-40
6. Obstetrical Patients Triage Policy 41-42
7. Point of Care New Test/ Method Request and Implementation
Policy 43-44
8. Point of Care Testing Policy 45-47
9. Staffing Requirements, Development of Policy 48
10. Sterile Technique 49-51
11. Wound Classification During Surgical Intervention 52-53
Administrative Policies and Procedures
1. Business Visitor Visitation Requirements 54-57
Unit Specific
Engineering
1. Breached Medical Gas Lines 20014.1 58
2. Contractors Hazard Communications Program 59
3. Contractors Working in the Facility 60-61
4. Daily Journal 62-63
5. Domestic Hot water 2005 64
6. Emergency Generator Test Loads 65-66




7. General Personnel Policies 67-69
8. Inspection Testing and Maintenance of Fire Alarm Detection
and Automatic Extinguishing System 70
9. Maintenance and Inspection of Electrical Distribution System
and Emergency Generator 71-72
10. Maintenance and Inspection of Medical Surgical Air and
Vacuum System 2004 73-74
11. Maintenance and Inspection of Boiler/ Steam System 75-76
12. Maintenance Work Request System 77-78
13. Managing Biological Agents to Prevent Waterborne lliness 79-80
14. Preventative Maintenance 81-84
15. Routine Hospital Rounds 85
16. Scope of Service- Tracked Changes 86-87
Scope of Service- Clean Copy 88
17. Staff Meetings 89
18. Statement of Accountability 90
Medical Staff
1. Suspension for Delinquent Medical Records 8710-519 91-93
NICU
1. Primary Nurse Assignment 94-96
Women and Newborn Services
1. Sterile Processing of WCS instruments 97-98
Formulary Requests
1. Entresto- Trade Name Sacubitril and Valsartan- Generic Name 99-100
Forms
1. Cardiopulmonary Arrest Record 101
6. Review and Discussion of CLINICAL Contracts To be 10 min. | Chair
(Discussion/ Possible Action) distributed
7. Motion to go into Closed Session 2 min. Committee
8. CLOSED SESSION 30 min. | Chair
a. Reports of the Hospital Medical Audit and/or Quality Assurance
Committee (Health & Safety Code Section 32155)
b. Conference with Legal Counsel — Significant exposure to litigation
(Government Code Section 54956.9(b))
9. Reports from the Committee Chairperson of any Action Taken in 10 min. | Chair
Closed Session (Government Code, Section 54957.1)
10. Comments from Members of the Committee 5min. | Committee
11. The next meeting of the Professional Affairs Committee of the Board is on 1 min Chair
May 12, 2016.
12. Adjournment 1 min Chair




‘wey ayy
JO UOIJBISPISUOD S 891ILUWIOD
-olgnd a10j8q 211gnd 8y} 0}
8y} JO slaquiaw Wolj sjuswwod Buipiebal }salsyul Jo wiay Aue uo ojignd
[I2YOUIN Jo3oaag ydeiBeied sy} peal |[SYoHA J0308iI | BY} JO siaquiBW Ag SJUBWIWOY) ‘¢
"B|luul4 1030811 Aq papuodas pue
300|[eyos Joypaiq Ag spew sem "SUOI}BOl}IpOW JO SUOIHPPE OU alam alay}
[I2Y2UN Jojoalg epusabe ay} anoidde o} uoljo pue epusabe sy} pamainal 99O 8y | epusby jo jeaoiddy ‘gz
"L wooy Alquiassy ui ‘w-d go:zZ| 1e
JISY2UN 10303110 l1apio o} Bupesw ay} paj|ed J|ayoy Jojoeiq BpI0 O] ||eD |
a|qisuodsay SUoIBPUBWWOIY
(s)uosiad Juonosy dn-mojjo4 uoissnosi(] oido ]

"uosuyor sswer “iqg pue dA ‘IS /AND ‘ZINYoS UoJeyS :Juasqy SIoquuispy

"ZUSH ualiey| pue eusng elolled ‘souaimeT] B3SO ‘sploukay e||iosiid ‘Iysor eAld ‘isnoAAep yeles ‘siakpy Aouen ‘eiepy esi] ‘yusied

aMIN ‘sio0p\ sewoy ] ‘puowelq Atepy ‘s|jeos |aqes) ‘seineq uoseys ‘mesbopy uebbepy ‘swis ans)s ‘ddo) Ayiey ‘souerdwo) pue AlojejnBay oy
Jopaliq ‘uosiesid lwer ‘Ajajes Jualied g 1B YsiY 11D ‘AjenD Joj Jojaliq IS ‘Ybneueae) elosely ‘[asuno) jelsuss) ‘Jooy Apor :Jussald sieyQ
1Jo2IO 9oueldwo) JaIyD ‘Mmeyg-pleusag sjfiayd pue dA 99x3 /00D ‘Asjuo) endey Jusseid siaquiapy Bujop-uopN

"UBWLIOAA 1098
JQ pue el ausg "Jg ‘opJejuoD snaJe “ig ‘e|luul] BUOLWIEY J0J0RII] ‘HOO|leyoS Alie Jojoaliq ‘(UleyD) |IoUdHIAl BINeT Jojoal]  Juasaiy slaquiapy

9102 0l ydlen
s9)nulp uoissag uadp
Bunesyy seniwwo) sileyy |eUOISSdj0id
lajua) |edips|y AND-1)

1l4dvdda




9101€0 senulN Ovd

ellenc eoled

uosJesld lwep

‘lenoidde pieog

1o} plemioy Buirow saloijod ayy
anoidde 0} uoiow ayj papuooss
opJejuoY) "I pue pasow ejiuul4
Jo)aliq ‘parcidde jje aiom
salnpasold pue seloljod sedIneg
ale) jusljed ayl :NOILOV

‘pajussaid

SEM }I SWI} }se| dY} Wol) pappe
usaq aAey jeyy saiiAljoe ayj e
1o8)ja1 0} pajepdn aq ||Im Hodal
Ayjenb qeysy eyl :NOILOV

"JSI| 9U} JO IO UBHE) Bq [IIM Sied

Jewojed ejsiA auy} ‘os|y "0} pajiLl Jou

Inq jendsoy ay} Jo N0 sealy, Se payipoLu
8g pjnoys siejuad juaiedino uo Uoioss ay |

"Jun 8y} Ui Jed Mojselg ay} Jo aous)sixa
ay} Buipiebal uoissnosip 3oinb e sem aiay |

‘Aojjod siyy
Uo Jno ude} a9 |jIm }npe Jo uoniuyap ay |

"Juswpedsp |d

ay} Aq payoel} Buiaq ale sainseaw Ajijenb
yoiym jo buiobuo Ajjusnnd ale jey; syosfosd
Auoud (Q) xis ale alay) Jey} pauoljusiu osje
Iwer ‘pappe aq ||im sainseaw sisdas pue
Ino pajind aq {|im SaINsesw aWoS "palial
aq ||IM pieogysep Jualind ay} Ul sainseaw
3y} JO swos jey} pauyodal uosieald lwep

foljod uoneziigo
Wwes] gojed apo ¢

Aoljod
ue|d asuodsay Juld 9poD ¢

Aotjod
ue|d asuodsay anjg apoDd ‘|

:S94npasold
pue saidljod ales juaned

salnpaooid pue saiijod

JO |enosddy a|qissod
pue uoljelapisuoy) 'q

pieoqyseq
sawoonQ Alenp e

ssauisng MaN G

Z)IBH ualie)y

"'010Z Aeniga4 woly sanuiw sy}
anoidde 0} uoijow sy} papuoosss

)20||ByoS 10j0ali(] pue pasow
Bjiuuld Jojoalig ‘payijel ssjnuipy

‘Bunesw 9102
‘L1 Aeniga4 wol) ssnuiw sy} anoidde
0} UO[joW B 10} Pa)||ed |[BYSNA 10}0alI]

'910¢ Meniqa4
JO sajnuIW Jo uonesyiey i

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiag

SUOolJepuUBWWIOIdY
juonay dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiqg

oido|




€

9101 €0 ssinuiN Ovd

eilanc) eouled

Bliang eioujed

‘lenoidde pieog

Jo} premioy Buinow saioljod sy
anoidde 0} uonjow sy) papuodas

UBWLIOAA "1Q pue parow
ejluul4 Joyoaliq ‘pancidde

[|e elem sainpaoold pue saloljod
SAljelisiuiwpY 8yl :NOILOV

‘suodeam |e63] Jo abelo}s ay} yum
pajeioosSSe SoNsSI pue suoljsenb awos alom
alay) aouls Jno pa|nd Buieq si Aoljod siy|

-abe uleyso e 0} dn ualpjiyo 1oy Ajuo
si soljelpad se sjua0sa|opYy Joj uoieonp]
JO UoIsiAold 8 0} payipowl sem a1} 8y |

‘sabueyo
Aue axeuw 0} pasu ou Si 318y} 0S |BSISAIUN
Anaud si Aoijod sy yey) pasibe dnoib sy

‘sjuaned

g0 1o} Ajianoe sune)n sy buiuuew sjdoad
[eou}d)sqo Jeinbal pue paj|ys usamiaq
uoioUlSIp Jesjo B apeW 83IWLI0D 8y |

*Ao1j0d S1y} Uo uoISSNOSIP ON

‘sainpaooid pue sjuaned
g0 0} saljdde osje |000j0.d uoIsnjsuel)
SAISSEW 8Uj} Jey) pajels opiejuod 'iq

"g|doad (yesp) pasedwi
Bunesy ay} 1oy Aoijod ajeledss e s| aiay)
ey dnoib ay} 0} paysijgelsa a)jeos] |ages|

"Aoijod s1y} uo uoissnosip oN

(lenuepy
Aunoag woly Buinopy)
suodeap) |eba jo abeloig

uonjezijeydsoH
Buunq soujeipad
10} uoieonp3 Jo UOISINOIH

00z |esodsiq
pue ‘uj-apel]| abelo}g
‘Jojsuel | yuswdinbg

b

$29INpa20.id
pue saidljod aAlRlSIUIWPY

alnpaooid

AnpY suus)n pue sjey
Heay |e}a Jo JuUSWISSassy
do-}sod pue einu| ‘aid

sealy

[ea1bing ui A}ajeg juaned

j000}01d
uoIsnjsuel] aAISSe

S82IAI9S Uolje|suel ]
pue uonejaidiaju]

sueldisAyd
yym Bupesiunwwod

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiag

suolepuawWWo23y
juonoy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiq

oido)

o



L4

9101 €0 seinuIN Ovd

eliens) eoljed

ellanc) eiouled

Bliang) eoled

pue saloljod y)esH |eloineyag
uenedinO 8yl :NOILOV

‘lenoidde pieog 10} piemio)
Buinow saoijod ay} anoidde

0] UOHOW 3y} PApUOISS UBWIOAA
"1 pue panow ejiuul Jojoaig
‘panoidde ||e aiom sainpasoid
pue sajoljod NDIN YL :NOLLOV

‘lencidde

pieog Joj psemio) Buinow saioijod
ay} anoidde 0} uonouwl ay}
Papu0o9as }20j|eyog Jojalq pue
paAOW UBWIIOAA "1Q ‘panoidde
[le @1am sainpaooid pue saioljod

jo1ju0D UOROBU| Y] INOILOV

yesH pally Aq paoejdal aq |jim Aoijod sy}
ul pash (dN) Jauonioeld asinN wia) ay |

"$3101|0d 9S8y} UO UOISSNISIP OU 1aM alaL}
os dn uayoliq bBulaqg ale sailjod ; asay |

‘Aoljod s1y} uo UOISSNOSIp OU S| aJay |

‘Ajluanbasuo9 pajs|ap bBulaq ale
yolym ¢ pue z# Ad1j0d JO UOIjeUIqUIOD B SI
Aoyjod siyy saoijod asay} Uo UoISSnasIp ON

sejoN ssalboig uenishuygd ¢
sjusijed jo juswiean-o0) ‘|
uleaH |eiolaeyag juanedno

JO 9|0y

‘asinN passlsibay -owun
dn-mojjo4 jueu| ysty-ybiH 2

j0 9j0y

1sidesay ] |eaisAud -olu)
dn-mojjo4 e ysiy-ybiH ‘9

Jo |0y ‘uennaIq -oLID
dn-mojjo4 e ysiy-ybiH g

JO 9]0y ‘lojeulploo? -olulD
dn-mojjo4 eyl ysiy-ybiH v

JO 9|0y ‘1obeue)y

eje( [eleunad -oui)
dn-mojjo4 e ysiy-ybiH ¢

weiboid
dn-mojjo Jueju| ysiy-ubiH g

Buipaa4 paseg an) |
NOIN

19-9 D1 JHA Yim
sjuaned jo Juswabeueyy ‘¢
1€-9 O1 YSHIN yim
sjualjed Jo juswabeuepy ‘g
uoyosju| SldIA 'O
lo/pue (OYAWN) swsiuebip
Juessisay Bnug-niniy yum
sjusied jo juswabeuepy |
|oJjuoH uonoadju|
oy1oadg pun

a|qisuodsoy
(s)uosiag

SUOIIEPUSWIWOI3Y
juonoy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiqg

oido)




G

9101€0 SeINulN DVYd

Bliang) eioujed

BLISNG) BIOUjEd

‘sg)0ljod asay} aroidde o} uojow
8y} papuooas ¥}00|1eyoS Jojoald
pue paaow e|iuul{ Jojoaliqg
‘lenosdde pieog 10} premio}
Buinow ase pue penoidde

aiam sainpasoid pue saloijod

uonelljigeysy ayl :NOILOV

‘lenoidde pieog 1o} pJemio)
Buinow saioijod ay} anoidde

0} UoiOW 8y} papuod8s OpIejuo)
"J(] pUB paAow UBLWLIOAA "I
‘panoidde |je atem sainpaoold
pue saloljod Juswabeuepy

ale) jualjed ayl :NOILOVY

‘lencsdde pieog 10} piemioy
Buinow sealo1jod sy} anoidde

0} UOHOW 8y} PapUODaS UBWLIOAA
"1 pue paAow opieuo) ig

‘leas)| uled s jusijed
yoea 0} A|Buipioooe Buies a1ed ajnoe
ul dn 19s ale sjeob jey} pappe UBWIOAA "I

‘pauinouod dnolb sy} ‘sadines asey) aney
0} |eyidsoy 8y} 1o} [elolyauLq (IS S| i ‘Jealb
Jey} Jou si pasu ay} ybnoy) usag ‘ul pajjed
uaym juswdinba ayy sbuuq jsibojoipne ay
"Ajuo 1edA e sawl} g-G 10} Ajuo pasn Bulaq
ale saoInIas ABojoipne Jey) pajou Sem }

*A2110d SIY} UO UOISSNOSIP OU Sem alay |

Aoljo4 juswypedaq
Adesay] |eoisAyd ‘g

uoiyeonpg
JanBaseq pue jusijeq /2
20. Aallod
Adeisay] |euonednoas ‘9
(419H) dn-mojjo4 jueju)
¥siy YbiH dn-mojjod NDIN °§
919 syjuaby
[eulay] pasn sshifepoN
Aewwng
ableyosiq pue sajoN
ssalboid jo uoneluswnooq ‘¢
BUBID abieyosig g
S82INBS qeyay Jusijedu)
saoineg ABojoipny 7|

uonejljiqeyay

Buluue|d abieyosiq |

judwabeueyy ase) jusned

‘panoidde | asom sainpasold ‘(dHY) Jauonnoeld
a|qisuodsay SUOIIEPUAWIWOIdY
(s)uosiad Juonay dn-mojjo4 uoissnasi( aido|

M~



9101€0 SejnulN Ovd

asal] anoidde 0} uojjow ay}
papuooas %20|eyoS J0joali pue
POAOW UBWIOAA 10 ‘|eAosdde
pJeog Joj premio) Buinow ase
pue panoidde aiem sainpadsoid
pue saioljod saoIAIeg ulogmau
pue UsSWOAA 8y :NOILOV

‘saloijod asay} anoidde o} uoijow
By} papuo9as }20||eyos Jojoallg
pue parow ey IQ ‘|erosdde
pJeog 1o} piemio} Buinow ale pue
panoidde ajam sainpasolid pue
saoljod Anews|a] ay) :NOILOV

*$39)19]j0d 8S8j) UO LUOISSNISIP ON

"Op Spaq JoMau }SOW pue ‘sa|eas aAey spag
NDI ‘ui 19AoH suo uey) aiow sey Ayjioe} ay}
Jeu) UoNEDLLIED 10} PAXSE [[SYONIA J0j0aI(

"Hodal Oy

ypm uoiounfuod ul si elajluO UOlBIIISSE]D
sIyl ‘Jie Ag umouy |jom SI UoiedlISSe|o

¢ 10 Z SSejD jey} pauodal sem }|

‘oLjeuab
pue |ejeuosu jo depano ue sey Aoijod siy ]

"SaWI02)N0
poob Buinaiyoe ui sjusied ayj spie
}1 se pabeinoous Aybiy si uoneonpa do-aid

(LSV4 -Isal uonenung
osnody |e}a4) (SYA)
uonenwiS 2l3snodeolqin
ale) eisdwejosaiy
abeyuiowsH |eouyLlsqO
uoisnjuloiuwy

N

S9JIAIBG UIOgMBN pue USWOAA

jusijed
Aawaja| buybiepy 2

eusjio
abieyosiq pue uoissiwpy ‘|

Aijowaja |

lequinT 9 |BOIAISD) UOOBI] ‘]
ale) aynoy
‘uoneaioay olnadessy| ¢l
alnjle
waysAg abeino Jamod
‘suoljen|eang mojlems ‘zZL
foijod
juswipeda( Sa0IABS
ABojoyjyed yosadsg - |
S90INIBG JO 8d02g 0l

19 Adesay
[euonednaos Adelay )

|eoaisAyd Buiyoes) dpo-ai1d ‘6

ajqisuodsay
(s)uosiad

SUONEPUSWILOIDY
juonoy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasi

oidoj

(= o]



9101€0 SeINuiN Ovd

"SJUBWILLO) ON

sapILWOo) ay)
JO siaquUB W0} SJUBWIWOD "0l

1BYONN 10303110
uoissag
"US)|E} SUOIJOB OU 8Jam alay ] paso|) ul uaxe | uonoy Auy
19U JojoauId Jo uosiadiieyn ayj jo spoday ‘6
‘INd ¢¢-¢
[IPU2NIN JojoalI(d Je uoissag uadQ 0} uinjal svIWIWOY By | uoissag uadQ o} uInldy g
‘Nd S0:] }e UoIsSsas pasolo
ojul o6 0} panoidde Ajsnowueun
SEM }I pUB papuodas e|luul "UOISSag Paso})) Ojul
[IBYSHIN Joyoauq Jojoalig ‘panow oplejuc) “id 0B 0] uonow e 10} payse [|PYSHN Jo3oalld uoIssag paso|) “/
"99ILIWOD "991ILLIWIOD SIY} 0} PJemio}
ayj Aq panoidde |je atam Asy} ybnoiq Buiaq ase D3N Ul panoidde aiam
pue pajuasaid aiam 7 O} |\ Woiy Jey} s}oeljuod [ealuld ay} ‘AeAns jse| ay}
[ISUSUAI 10J81I] | SIOBIUO0D [eDIUljo 8yl INOILDV | Ul peziseydws se SND Yim soueljdwiod u) SJOBIJUOD [BDIULD "9

"sa101j0d asay} anoidde

0} Uoljow 8y} pPapuOISs UBWIOAA
"J(J pue paaouwl %90|eyas 10308liq
‘lenoidde pieog 10} piemio}
Buinow ale pue panoidde alom
sjsanbai Auejnwio} ayJ :NOILDOVY

‘saloljod

‘wsAinauy
1eal] 0) pasn AjUoOWIWOD SIY| ‘|eslanal
Arejnuiio} ou yyum Bnip e se palapisuod

s| pue abesn mo| A1an sey Asejnuuioy siy |

SJoN ssaiboid 8101-02.8 T
dn-mojjo4
Jueju) sty YbiH 2001-€88. 'L
'SINMOA

ploy oloul}ey suel | ||y
— oWwe)N apel] -ulounal] 'z

awepN
OLIBUAX) -qewnzioniep|
-aWweN apel] -puigxeld ‘|
s)sanbay Alejnwio4

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

SUOI}epPUAWIWIOIY
juonoy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiqg

aido|




91010 SOINUIN OVd =

ISYON Jojoaug Nd ¥2:¢ 3e pauinolpe Bunssiy juswuinolpy “} |
a|qisuodsay SUOIJEPUSWIWIOIBY
(s)uosiag Juonoy dn-mojjo4 uoissnosiq aidoj




*19e} Joddns Jou s0p uolEIUBWNIOP
asoym yels 0} yeads o) siadeuey y| | %00
Ajjuaisisuod pue Ajisea ydesSojoyd %50
pue Judwniop o} Ajijige jels anoduil g %0'T
30UIISIXI JIDYN PUB UONEIYIIUBPI S
ysu ul sapuadadsip Suuojuow anuRuo) 7 %07
4je3s poddns pue ]
Suisinu 1oy uoneanp3 AjyIuo anunuod T Nam.w
; - sa8seyasiq 00T J2d +1| 9835 430N 34nssald pasinboy |endsoH asnoH-u| %0
uejd uoildy, 191199
wesdold JaNIS 3191 SASeAY MIN ‘WaIsAs 00
uoIUAAIL ||B4 SSBJ3JIM MBN ‘143I| ||ed e yum 20
wooJ Ised yiem YIAIN -8U0Z SSed ON ‘NY pue
juaned Aq pausis pue pamainal -ue|d A1ajes v'o
A -uonuanaud e Joj Buauned, ‘Auqisia 90
ysaud,, -uoresynuDP] Asty [jed udisapay 80
uejd UondY. - sheq 1uaned 0001 42d Asnful Yum sijes apIm eaidson ot
Janeg
> & O O S & R 2> & N O 2 8 \ A
9&9 %\o & & ovva o\mo o & ¢ Q\o o mm,,o & o%o, & .oaoo & .%.b .aAo s .oz», .aAoo . o A».vo £
Apwej pue Jusped ajeanp3 4sisse| . . . L . . ) i L ) \ ) t . L 1 . . L : ) . " -0
YIM Hg 0} 21ejNquie 03 d|qeun Ji djqejIeAe
apowwod e aye ‘Susamoys /Funa|iol Suunp — s et m— s —  — b . T
saw (e e syuaiied ysi YSiy yum utewsy ot e s oaas o -z
‘sIN0Y g-¢ AJ9AD 1SES| 1B 13|10} O} PIISISSE Y51 e €
W ‘s, d€ Suisn Suipunol AlnoH :10j1d Sunajiog v
ue|d UoRoy - sAeq juaned 00T 4ad sjje4 apim jexdsoy s
SETTET:

198IRJJIND]L ==t m o= UBBIN YD) = === UBDA  reersmrssnnccnaasenns 21y JIND1

11



‘Juawanoidwi 3nuUOd 0] || pue & n».o mv.o S a8 g . .
suepisAyd yum Ajyauow Bunssy| . . . . . : ; ‘ : : : : . . . L ) . : : . . . I %0S

‘ssaso4d seau| pue yuedniudis \ . %09
%0L

Supjew ase apn ‘s|endsoy Jaylo

w044 S3{Nsa. |eJopIeue Yyum auij %08
- %06
. %00t
Naoys ondas/sisdas 219A9S ‘sjpung juawadeuey Alue3
& & & & & &
P R I P P T ol - LY P
o ov L T o 4 [A [N [\ F - - ) ) B r -
1 - 0 i 1 s 3 ] ) £ & i - ! L - %0
T, ek TR S ATl OV At cTEEE L e TR Y el A W Al TR 2 ATVt O P de . TEET .tk TTER S ’ N At o e R ¢, P YR uh S T, Cwd ER c\mo.ﬂ
%07
%0€
‘93ed 1B} %0 18 A|JUa1sIsuo) %0Y
ue|d UORIY i J1A 9]qeIuanaid Ajjenualod pasnboy [eydsol %03
: 13])1eg
> N O (o] ] S N A > & O O 3 S S A
N A N SN S & o &S s N - CHE AT I TR RN
5 > : S : £ P > ; 5 B : : £ > ; .,
“ysyyduIoIe O} 31BMYOS & & o L g ¢ g g N g g e § LY
feuonIppe pseu Aeyy -ssasosd syesyes o ; . : : m : . ) ; : . : . ; : . ; : . . ) ; ) L %05
A1y 0} || pue s103e2NPd JUN Yim SUIOM - %09
‘suonansul 1d uuepem guiguswniop Jo %0L
Sunuud ul ga4 g uer ul dosp paulejdxaun . %08
....w._mmmm.£|:o }iam 3uiop jo \roﬁ_x. - %06
Ue|diuoNdY %00T
> & O O ) S & 2 > S O O x) 33 2
. ~99 N D& \0 0& Q 00 & 2 2 2 o 2 0/ N ()
Suuaalep 1INnoyUM Y3| & & & ao% ov;. & A o.m/ & %4/ ovv § Joap o\mo, nv,o .vo .hozu .m,.v a&o 4 A & AAo \4%. .o»w ,«wy
oym uawom uissiw a1am am pue| . . . S . R . A SR . . A . R . R oy wer
wnyed 3sod uo auop sem 3uluaalds | w08
2J9YyMm SO uo uoleanpa 1g adueyd %8
ssa204d Aq passaippe Suiaq doip %06
>\_m3\_0 . I — ] R — il S
S SIEICIS TR 1200 m_.h_mm Apuasisuo) e
%00T

‘_wmmwm uonRezIUNWW| BZUINJU|

PEI]IJNDL == == UBBINYD) === UBDA]  eeeeecssesmmnnanenns 21y DINDL

~ S2UNSEDA] 940D

12



3| F2y

puz Ju21SIsUol spaau a8eLl] weay -
Apeal paq usym

Uodsueuy juaned anoadun 03 Suy|iy

paau |j11s suonisod sapodsuely g3 -
:suejd jJuawanosdw|

ue|d UoRdY

dn juam sajeu Japieog Q3 -
spaq d| Joj saduajjeyd Suiyels -
Aenuga{ ul snsuad ysiH -
:s98uajjey) uaaun)

{uBW?a|a 13U Yum pauiquio)d)

uejd uondy

‘%01

doj jeuoiieu mojaq Jo 1e AjJualsisuod
anunuod sawi| ‘syuaned uled

159UD dO 404 D)3 01 WL UeIpay

ue|d UOIAY

‘uepIsAyd
Joy auop Sujjjasuno) ‘syjuow
2T U13n0 ||e} 15T sem Asenuga4

ue|d uondy

1984e] JNDL

923 03 Wi ueIpay o
> . o I o S 3 A > N o o & 8 ey
F N A I P N RO N R . A~ AN L e S T O
A I R P A P Y R AR P
A e o T T Sy i B3 ranc
- %0L
- %06
P R Ry Py
N g jeany e uindsy
S UBBIAI YD) === ueaN

13



> & o o o} & 2 & & 2 > & > > (o > A S 8 Y
P P LI A R P S S O N SO AT APPSR I NP\ E E Ch
R N T~ T~ T~ M A D AP - N T~ M S R S S A A A S S 4
i . i . e _ N . e b . e+ e—od t %00
%0'S
‘8un@aw 9107 AN Dvd 03 Hodal
pajie3ap juasaud 01 yemoys 1g %0°0T
| 19)l19g %0'ST
ue|d uonly pajeas] Suiag asojag Ya1 luaned
CI () > O 5 A S & A 2> & () o O ) A S s 4
PO S - S L S NP S Y-SR P Y AP SN NN SR TS AR
N P - S A A S A S S HE S 2 T A S A S
[3 1 i $ 1 13 L 1 i d. J. i £ 1 1 L 1 1. 1 1 E} 1 I j 1. c

‘Bunaaw 910z AW JVd 01 Lodal
pajieap uasald 01 yemoys "iQ

uejd uondy

"Builsaw 910z Ae Jvd 01 Wodal
pajielap juasald 03 yemoys “uq

uejd UonIY

—— b 4 s b 4 GEEED § s mmEEN ¢ ¢ Gmem o o GEEES o b MEmEm o 4 GmEER § ¢ SEES > ) mmimm o 4 GEENS ¢ ¢ GEDES o o GmaEm ¢ ¢ GmEmS o ¢ @wm o o

— e emmmm o ¢ emmmm o o s ¢ —

33

S
P P N A A S S I R & & s o ¥4
o o B e ¢ e e N g & & & A S &S e Veay & &
L 1. L 1 L ' i 1 1 ' 'l L 1 1 ' 'l 1 L PR S 1 1 1 1. O

e b e N o s+ e b — e T —  —E —— — — o -t — o — s — — 00T
-Bunnsaw 910z Aey Dvd 03 Hodas ooz
pajie1ap juasaid 03 yemoys “ig - Q0E
L co

uejd uondy

1981ef DINDL

sjuaned g3 pasieyasiq 4o} ainuedaq @3 01 [eALy (I WOl dwi) UeIPIA

ueap

TEETIE o

918y JNDL

14

S2UNSE3N 310D




123 "D uopuelg
furx Sur ¢ YIL  BoIssf

‘1aARUpIA) 'V BIneT ‘Ioewooys [
‘JN USS[[0)) ‘SSE} aukf ‘zopuewisl |8
‘(I Maqoy ‘eunje I yelogaq |
{IOJUN] IOJBaH ‘P0uBN 'S USINeT|
‘oMUOIA "V SuuRI(] YBAOY [91910)
‘onJeidg “( epul SIIQUIDJA] WY, |
eIoIRD) [AUORY YOI |
"y BSSauaf ‘RIONIS auei( ¢ pAoI]
eAq ¢ JoAmg pusdug (ddoy, Aypedy |
‘ySneueae)) eroIely SI9PJOH 9qEIS
ZI[YOS UOIBYS :IIPLIT SANNIIXH
uaan()dA UIADY L.Iey)-0)
UIpieH S[[2YOIA =1ley])

SIoqUIaN Wea)

wioIsAg
wiIepy UonuaAaLd [je Juswardwyg
weidord
uonuaAaxd jje.g ut gess DDL
T1e epuyour 03 weidoid e ayea1) §
weifo1J uonuaAdId [[e]
oy w1 Ajtwey pue juaned oAjoAu] ¢
weldolg uonuaAal] sjfe,] mou
AJ2Iuo Uk 9SIISAPE pue uisopay ‘g
SjIun pajodes
ur yusuraAoidwi ojeyijIoe) 0} 100
LS. UOISSIUIUOY) JULOf 9} 2ZIJ1I()" |

sd91g IX3N PUE SUONEPUILLIUIOIDY

“uswanosdw] 8wWos = £ AlAIIdY Bwos =g ‘Buiuueld =T) ¢ ¢

..\‘.,‘ \n.l n
NOA QIDNVAQY

33ua) [edipay ANl 2

&

syd 1 sey DV uoym
g w ad yim Aeys o Jnongig
g osn 03 pasu ajdoad satpg0
€ Jo 7 uaym g ui suthelg
wened soypoue Sunsisse are
nok o[y Jjo Swro3 131 112D
I9A0 pue I9A0
suorsonb awes a1 payse 9q
01 Jueam jJou op Inq oy A1oAs
noA 29s 03 juem suoned JSON
IOV | yim Suniom skeme
10u pue Jids syusuIuIssy
Y3 oy Jo
appprwu a1 ur syuaijed Funyesm
:393foad Bunjoqio) 03 yyeIs
WO.Hj SIILLIBY U0 YOB(PId,)
Burpunoa
Apmoy jo yoedwr aanisod

uaaoxd 91} DIOJUIDY O] INUTIUO)

‘seakopdo HNDL e apnjout
0y auoz ssed oN :Aqrsuodsal
S,9U0A12A9 SI UOTIUAAI [[B]
S1oNPO.LJ UOTJUAI ]

[fe.] mau jo Suiseyoing

PIIRq
T 2ABY 01 )Q('8$ St LLIO] mau
-ugisap wu10j 10j poddng Ty/11

pauiea] suossay fsialueg

IrE - A 52 GRG0 40 qMby e |
vt Buwriva
A sy g aoquenn e

Lt I U T VR TINE WL T RS )

e sy [ wpn ST 1smeg oot

wammevamey | MmO LOTT. 0

wvmenapenmr | KBTI M omm e

E e L T T I Wy viRe

aLT " NG iumbaeENEC]  SeM BT EEL oYY unoracy

obadisg P03 whS 3 | sbomatey pmoy wis ey tuwaeo

— e RN m

!

B a — g s useay

0,C° [1 = 20ULISISSY JUdLIEJ ON
9%1°C] = sanss] uoneonpy
948 71 = SONSS] UONEBOIPIJN

%61 = sonsst I (18D
%6 G = 20UBJSISSY Woonpey

:s10)oey Sunnqriyuo)) g doj,

NSE ‘NY uIpJeH S|3ydIIA
S||e4 :J00L uoiln|os paiadie|

s3InsaJ Bulpueising =§ ‘Juawancidwy juediudis =y
D402G JUDBWISSISSY J|9S

(dweadorg
IONIS 99, SASBAY MON /L
(g) waisAg
UOHUSARL] [[B,] SSO[IIM MAN 9

(&) W31 [1e0 B 1pim woor jsed
Alem YIAHUN -PU0Z SSed ON "G f
(1) N pue juoned Aq paudis ,

pue pamataal -uejd Aojes AN b

-uonuaAdi [jeq J0j Suusmiey  p * 2

|
(L
ANQISIA ysal],, -uonesyuspy
AsIy |jed uBisopey ¢
Apuey pue quoned ojeonpy .
IsIsse
(A g 01 23e[quue 01 djqeun
J19[qe[ieAk OPOUWILLIOD B ONRJA
SurLomoys
/Bunapiol Suuinp saw [je je
sjuarjed NS YSIY M Uy .
SINOY 9-4 AI19A2 JSBI|
j& 1910} O) PAISISSB ISLI 1Y
S_Jd¢€ suis() Sutpunoi AINOE
(1) 1011d SunepioL

(L) 3u2Ag [jed 1504
10} [00], Uond3fjo)) B1e(q MION I

ol

{Sy peasds 46 (i) poruswaiduij

1) Po1sal {d) pauuejq Bulag saduey)
'910T ‘1 Jequieydeg £q suun
AIIOWD[3], Uk SIOIAIDG 2I8)) ANOY
o Ul 9501 Aq sq[ey uanedur eonpay

JuaWaeIs Wiy

3@%& GIDNVAQY

ud) |eAnpay Aud-uL 2!

&



A 191, NY SplouAay e|jasid
dN SWiS UaANS
weay punom 0d Aauym Jauer
weay L) punopm sadeueiy ‘Uarsog uny
Juswanoaduy
2oUBMLIOKAd /AIEND 1B ¥R J0 10133410 "yIneuene) e
10)RUIPI00)
SaWoNNO pue Ayjeny Fuisin ‘N ‘NS UOSPO AN ; uEI -G B BECIRAY v APH WU “1g % —e
NY N1 ‘91308 0I5y Y
Ny Afiojosuq ‘doeysuj epury . SOUIORIED IV S9N NS5 PRANDIY [OHTION UMM SIUSNEY e e o 2mag i
NY @3 ‘Heno) (93249
Ajjjend Ny ‘uosdio mine)
108euDy BSINN JUEISISSY ‘BHEN L3URS URSHYD
103UINP3 LD BINIY NY YIUBI4 BSSIUD[
Anausjay NY 3LINOYIH By
NIOM ‘U] eusso]

¥
ik

|20
E5h)
o

|

1 |
[ Rogste

B 15547

1,

!I'

07 Kiabing pue y3 o

" SiequiaN uieal i e ars i (1) suoidwey?) aie) punom =
g " ST | UV € —— - — 1IN - - —— 0y *FMIvAy + NdYH U 3d S ——e—
uLINSe3N U
. A) plE | 1Y _ +i AOB31P) 313N INS5534d PAINDIY EIAIOH GHM SR JO %5 Sonrey (1) 53 10} sassep
|9powiay |00l UOIIEINPT [ ~ - uo11eINP3 AJYIUOW 348D PUNOM =

"3 10} UOISSNISIP UEISAYd o |
sdaig 1xeN pue suojepuaiiiodsy’
$24N19|d 4O AJjenD pue AlljIqe|eAR BIBUWIED °§

(d) uoneuswndoQ Juswieal Nd
13 S]0201014 UOIIUBALd JO Bulimpie
10} UOIIEIUBWNIOQ YHT JO UBISOPIY =

‘53UDLUILBI) PUB SHNSUOI PUNOM 10} PI1OBPNG B1am | s
5IN0Y B50UyM WEd) PUNOM BY] AG BUOP St UOIIUBAIDIL =
8upinbad syuaned Jo Ja3)n aunssasd e yym Juaied ayy WL oL gD = o o= I o UESW oo THUO SeD Mnow s sns Rinens (d) 109010.1d UOIIUIABAJ J3J)() DINSSAId =
40 8482 8Y3 uo dn Buimojo) pue Bujiednseaul ‘Bupaesl| -f FBEIS B43210) SIMSEAIG PEINDBOY 1EIASOH HUM IUFNED JC %
3Y31 J0 |y 'S324N0STY [3UL0SI3d pue :43peg” S e e T |
KDL i 7 =141 _ =g woa Fal O [ i i - 5 =T HUP S3iuss0y ! An; HCUEHNN‘_._.
',ASng 003 aJe Jeis ay3,, 95nEIq UOIRIUBINIOP BY3 1O — — - e - Nd 10} 21NPad01d PazIPIEPUEIS
juaized 3y 8uiaas Inoyym saA3 N0y Jo Suudis IINY w03 Fon E B TO St AS GED
A Q %0 C “hZ g Bl LT TA uonNnt o
|1e e palajdwod ~oa ] 3 T TBo12oU0 wenREa T [ (s) @8uey) 1npoigd
30U SI 31 108} Ul UBYM Pa3R|dwod 1 Buieyd eyl oS 4 R X T Senclaei I uSiediuey UORUBARI 10§ BUGIIS
31221pUI 10 BUOP 10U 3UE 1BY] SWwioy d8uelQ udIeg “F wa o T e I ] T S S eeREATT ! i S =
. S RGNS G EEuma 315 e 1RO B
smeys w a8ueyd Suuodas - Fra E e = tetm e “ uoneanp3

NN JRIRISOL] UMM BIUDIIN] JO JIDBDIDY
AMYOBSHSYA “UwAL3Ia

49 Bunueyd yum sisixa ws|qoad e J1 ¥oeqpas) Juanbasu
AsaA “BurBueyd si a3 3y} J1 1o 51512 Aduedaidsip

Yum yaune|ay (S) (0oL UpNY upiSsak3 p «

£ )1 BUIWIBI9p 03 Jo9eURW BYY Ag  dn pamojjoy wTa | wiT [ wEd e TECH e il .
S04 {ngasn iodas Asuedaldsig ayy i4opaeq 7 w69 WT WEO | sZe€ | St B BT FasweeL | peaids Jo
‘sojoyd By} 43 pue 5Ia3|N a4nssald ek S Nl <c | T I i ‘PejusLdjdW] pe)sa] ‘PauuE|d sabueyd
104 400] AJUO oYM Y3 343 10§ 14BIS BukIy pUBWWOID) 560 il = EEE s SIIREd E = ; e
HBIS BLUOS "}NdKJIP 00} S! UOIRIBNN UB BURLBLINIOP Rk —— Gl <t | T - e ABawsuguenied ¢
jeyy ‘Asnq 00) ale A3y) 1ey) peIsasans aAry Jels BWos i %G s ] ol | oGt G S i ‘9102 ‘L€ Joquivoaq Aq s1e9n
"}l JUBWINIOP 10U S30p uepIsAyd syt ‘) uswndopjou| | o ¥el | wed jenior) 1S G " A T ST ainssaud pasnboe jenudsoy Jo
590p 9SINU BY3 §| "WOOY AduaSIaW] 341 Wt AJUSISISUOD s s e B e e e = e ke ﬂ aouspIoul 0182 s| youm jebiey o401
auop SuIaqg 10U [J1S SUOIEBNIEAD UD(S :J3KIeg T R e T e et pam e dot O uleisns pue 198 (wiy
(meq asnoH-u|) +jl abmg 130 ainssaiyd pannbay JERdso 1M JUBRR JO 9% 4

AHYOaHSYA IIv.130 _ - jusuaielg Wiy

peulesT suosseT

NOCA QIDNVAQY | 121Ua)) |BOIP3 A >H_U_L_._..
9T0¢ UOlUaALR1d J922|M 94NSSald

21ud) [edIpay AL 4



yoysdasm dagas;enasm |jesang = _
|SOAJDA] AIBWISSOY _ 9T-uer ST-23a ST-AON ST-P0 | S(QA Pue gjeis (U Jo uonsanpy — | .
1A pudug %00 _ sawy 3ae)s sisdog
s0n1g ST 1013102 0] su0d1 sisdag Juduwdpdwry — 1 »
SWILLG 9A1S %002 spaty sisdag aaosdwyp—p .
a8puquieg oonig . 53893
ySneueae) eioIep %982 | qE] pawDn JBWOINE 0} §]9§ PIQ —] -
uosIuaLg el S0°0F %00t JIBYDIIMO U MDA
7S voseys | s)nsaa darsuayardwod yusunddur) - I, .
yemoys AuoH 1 | %009 | JUIUUSSISSY
umouig Auyoioq i | %5 T9%ST9 ! P3sndoq A & Jo uonBUdWNIOP
UBULIOA, 13098 I(T | uepisAiyd 1oy wrog-d -3, .
SISqUISW WeaL %008 Juaunea.n
%8°'18 JO uonBHIUI PUB UOHBIYNUIPI
J211B3 ap1aoad o) pasoqysep
%0°00T: sisdos suniy, ey € NI — ],
“ {S) pesids
‘syuaped ondas il 16 1) pajuswisjdil] ‘(1) paisal Suiag seduey) m
Jojuounealy pue uonedyHULPL | R
1211189 Bupmoje sanhjeue | auridoadds ajenur 03 ssadoad |
aAndIpaad 3upeadajul Swizypn Jlqelaa pug yudrdyyd ue apraoad of, « _
pABOqUSEP W) [Bad B Su1)eald ~yoos andas 1o sisdas |
sapdeut aandrpad dopasq - uo A2 [[Im ssaagord [ewixey 219435 10] YSLI )t .10 ui Juaned Ajrpuaps ”
B)EP JULL) [BIX PACMO) JIOAN o *3ARdadsoa)al sy eyep ISOJA - 01 5[00) SuTIAIIdS jo yuduwrdoaaap Ay, » _
N $d935 IXeN PUE suojiepuawIlioday N PauJEa] SU0SsSaq /SIaTlEy . , BiEQ /s1ey) uny . juswajels Wiy \_

s1/nsal SUIPUBISING =G ‘Juswanosdw] Juediudis
=t [JUBWSA0IdW| BWOS = € ‘AJIAIIDY BWOS =g ‘Buluueld =T) ‘ § 8J01S JUIWSSISSY }|3S

a3pliquieg aonug . aasnvAGY

W AuD-tg 2

ININIDVNVIA SISdIS FHINIS -




‘opey|aN "1 "IN AOf ‘YL ] BDISSSI fYduRld 'Y
BSSaUI[ ‘UBQQ e ug ‘yemoys 4 Asuay ug

sydes3 elep |
10} S1sAjeuY 1d/1D — BHYL SSB PUB ZaYdues yory |

BUENY:AEIGI R

a1aue) Ae {|sz3epzaney) usydals ‘yny
e2iss8[ ‘uonng paser ‘zouniy adop (Bunoy |
"\ USAR3S ‘ejoien jayoey ‘'aNym 4 ejned
SUIYDTY L YIDqaIaN ‘YSneuene) ‘A eI

|
‘eloyIS duelq ‘4aneH ejole) selied *f dIpue) _

‘a8pliquieg S 82n4g ‘Z3NYds "y uoleys |
‘zayoues ¥ary ‘Asjuo) endey ‘ddo| Aye)y

SI3qUISYY Wea)

UOIEZI|{IN JOJUOW ‘SDIIAIDS JIOWOLd  »
2jasas 8uaUG) D8aeyds|q |

‘uoHEZ||IIN JOJNUOW ‘SBNSS| |EUOIEIBdO 1N0 YoM

‘siseq JuR)SIsuod e uo agunoj Dq wBwIdw| o |
88uno adseydsig

‘ssao0ud
aziwndo 03 48} uoneslsiSay Jayjoue yeis 01

paau ‘MopIom pue suoisod yim Juswianosdwi

$52204d UO JUBYNSUOS YHM HIOM O} INUIIUOD
a8ep L weat g3

‘pasnbal
SE BJ93149 ISn{pe pue Jojjuow 0] BNUIIUOD
*sjus|ied |edipaw }IIs Joj g3 Y3 u

spaq aiow pauado sey yaiym sjusized asay Joj
panosdwi sey indy3nouys uaned ‘syuaned NHY

8 01 dn Bul93s :107/92/0T uo pauado NHA AT -«
2UNS NHE

$0935 IO PUE SUOIIEPUSLILIOIaY

-Buyeis pue AjjiqejieAe paq Jo sialaeq aydsap
$313W SA0IAUY O} }JOM 0} BNUIIL0I 01 PaaN

suotysod sap10dsuely g3 umop Suisq 01

NP JoUUBW AlpUIn B Ul 3Un Y3 03 dn sjusped
1odsues} 01 3|qe Sujdq 10u 0] anp Suiseasdul
usaq aAeY senujw Jedsq 03 Apeay psg

‘a1nyny Ul 553008 dA0IAWI PINOYS ‘BIIAIBS
S1Y3 558928 UED SNY USYM 104 AJjjige S1eupood
0} s3upadwW pey — 921A19s 93431OU0D 38.4eYds|d

*SHOIM M3Y
1sed ui juaned suo 104 Aep duo 104 Nun pauado
Ajuo 3ouls 9A10aY9 Jou jofid Nun 981eyasiq

‘Aujigejieae jejs
pue paq payw) 0} anp g3 w SulpJeoq paseasou|

'spaq Juspedui

01 dn panow sjuaijed Buad ui sAejap Ja8uo)
Suisnes Suj8uajjeys sem Suyels pue Aseniqad
Jupnp Y3y sem snsus) *pajusuajdw uasq
8ABY JeY) suonnjos aydsap sAejap Joj asned
15938}q 243 $1 Y31y S) SNSUII UIYM SuOfIBIW)|
Suiyels pue paq jeasAyd ayy “ssadosd
95JeyIsIp pue uoISSIWPE 343 JO AJUBIdIYD

9y 192442 1y} sansst ul Alijiqenen ysiH

@ e ain Wn SED LM WY (KR W KIS IR AR Fee M MR bes kew INR (ER

I sy i g g

wd ZT 840jaq UM SIapLO alieydsia

W e D IN AR WIR REh (RN WD WD iNR TR ben W S A W (NS (3R

E
-

. o

- e
Sm——

satug) uelpa — aden weay

A|rep ssasoid majy
3 szAjeue o3 yisiA 3 jo Jusuodiwiod Yoea 10§ $21133W e 30| 0}
samuiwo) smolly ~ 9T/TE/€-9T/T/T Hoday sawil mo)d al

o
#.W— MF s)9am maj ised uj Jey os

30U0 pasn A|uo — paAejap aJe sapu

J1 eaJe 0] spualled s|gels anoW

a8uno adseydsiq

poddns Ajjwiey ajeIpaww] INOYM

sjua|ied 1oj poddns adieyosip

UM 1s|SSe 03 S3DIAIS BZY|1IN

aonas adaapuo) adseydsia

221eyosip JO 3wl |enjde pue QOET

01 Jojid usnsm siapio adieyasip
asealoul 03 SaLIBW IsijendsoH udlyy -
wawudiy penuo) isyendsoy 1
5532044 adseyasiqg aneduy |

ujwi

O€ 1113s ! je03 ‘Ui 9 03 Uoi3oNpal I
J0 ules ayl Suiuiejuiew uo Suplop — _
}

uedaq 031 Apeay pag ‘g
sjuaned [
J0 afieyas|p pue awj3 punoleuany
anoldwi 03 ease jesedss ﬂ_J
O}u} UOHEZI|IQE]S UOIIEdIP3W Padu
1ey) sjuailed NHY ajqels s1ed0py -~ _
ST/.2/0T paiuawsa|dw| - ayns NHE ‘T _
ndy3noayl anosdw pue awi 3anpal u
03 2{43|2 uoi3eJIsI3BY pue vd ‘NY |
yum ssao0ud a8ew| panosdul ajeal) — |
98en weal ‘1
juapedu) 03 @3 |

sy pesids
30 ) pejuswaldw| (L] pa3sal duiag sesuey)

"Ae3s Jtayl Inoy3nouyl mojy Juspied jjeiano
3y3 uo Judpuadapiaiul S| SSBIINS [{BIBAD

‘uolIssiwpe 40 ainpedsp o1
|eAlte Q3 wol) Aouaidiye mojs quaned saosdw)

juawglels uny

N €)ed /sHey) uny .

/ pausea] suossa /sialiieg

9T/CT/v
INSIAL ‘NSE D9-NY ‘ddo] A
|dYD 404 33epdn
231 IWWOo) Indyanoay] apipn |eadsoH

mu. QQ&W n G3DNVAQY
21u3) [P AUD-4).

NOA

G3DNVAQY

33U [EAPBIN AUDL .S

&




ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

¥ Tri-City Medical Center

PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

April 14th, 2016
CONTACT: Sharon Schultz, CNE

FOR Y@U

Policies and Procedures

Reason

Recommendations

Patient Care Services Policies & Procedures

1.

Care for Recalcitrant Children Policy

3 year review,
practice change

2.

Child Passenger Restraint System Education Policy

3 year review,
practice change

3.

Diluting IV Medications for IV Push Administration
Procedure

3 year review,
practice change

Immediate Use Sterilization, Intraoperative

3 year review,
practice change

Micromedex Carenotes Procedure — Tracked Changes
Micromedex Carenotes Procedure — Clean Copy

3 year review,
practice change

Obstetrical Patients Triage Policy

3 year review,
practice change

s

Point of Care New Test Method Request and
Implementation Policy

3 year review,
practice change

9.

Point of Care Testing Policy

DELETE

10. Staffing Requirements, Development of Policy

3 year review,
practice change

11. Sterile Technique

NEW

12.Wound Classification During Surgical Intervention

NEW

Administrative Policies & Procedures

1.

Business Visitor Visitation Requirements

3 year review,
practice change

Unit Specific

Engineering

1.

Breached Medical Gas Lines 2004.1

3 year review,
practice change

Detection and Automatic Extinguishing System

2. Outside Contractors Hazard Communications Program 3 year review
3. Outside Contractors Working in the Facility < year review,
practice change
4. Daily Journal 3 year review,
practice change
5. Domestic Hot Water 2005 3 year review,
practice change
6. Emergency Generator Test Loads 3 year review
7. General Personnel Policies 3 year review,
practice change
8. Inspection Testing And Maintenance of Fire Alarm 3 year review,

practice change

Maintenance And Inspection Electrical Distribution
System and Emergency Generator

3 year review,
practice change

10.

Maintenance And Inspection Medical Surgical Air and
Vacuum System 2004

3 year review,
practice change

11.

Maintenance And Inspection of Boiler/Steam System

3 year review,
practice change

19



ADVANCED HEALTH CARE

PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
April 14th, 2016

FOR Y@U

CONTACT: Sharon Schultz, CNE

Policies and Procedures

Reason

Recommendations

12. Maintenance Work Request System

3 year review,
practice change

13. Managing Biological Agents to Prevent Waterborne
lliness

NEW

14. Preventative Maintenance

3 year review,
practice change

15. Routine Hospital Rounds

3 year review,
practice change

16. Scope of Service — Tracked Changes
17. Scope of Service — Clean Copy

3 year review,
practice change

18. Staff Meetings

3 year review,
practice change

19. Statement of Accountability

3 year review,
practice change

Medical Staff

1. Suspension for Delinquent Medical Records 8710-519

Practice Change

NICU

1. Primary Nurse Assignment

3 year review,
practice change

Women and Newborn Services

1. Sterile Processing of WCS Instruments

3 year review,
practice change

Formulary Requests

2. Entresto — Trade Name Sacubitril and valsartan—
Generic Name

Forms

1. Cardiopulmonary Arrest Record

Practice Change

20



@‘9 Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES POLICY-MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 5/09 SUBJECT: Care For Recalcitrant
Children

REVISION DATE: 6/12 POLICY NUMBER: IV.TT
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 07/4212/15
Nurse Executive Committee: 0711201/16
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 08/1202/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 08/12
Board of Directors Approval: 08/12
A. PURPOSE:

1. To ensure minor patients are provided with appropriate resources to identify and treat behavioral

and psychological challenges.

PROCEDURE:

1.

Every patient ages 0 to 21 years old admitted to Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC) shall be
evaluated for persistent behavioral and/or psychological difficulties:
a. Upon admission, the RN will begin to document any identified problems on the patient
admission assessment or patient history form.
b. Every discipline that interacts with the minor patient is to communicate their findings in the
patient’s chart upon identification of difficulties.
i. Nursing
ii. Physician
iii. Social Work
iv. Ancillary Staff: Pulmonary, Rehabilitation, etc.
c. Each discipline will also take into account the interactions between the minor patient and
their parents/guardians.
The Social Worker who is a CCS paneled Social Worker will:
a. Meet with the patient/family and advise regarding the possible eligibility for CCS benefits
b. Provide the patient/family with the CCS application and assist with completion of the
document
c. Provide the family with a list of the CCS special care centers and assist in making
appointments
If a child has a condition that warrants a referral to a special care center, a referral should always
be made to CCS. If you can get the appointment before discharge (if the child is eligible), then an
appointment with a paneled Medical Doctor will be arranged before discharge if possible.
Nurses who have determined their minor patient is at high risk for harm to self or others, shalll
notify the patient’s physician immediately.
a. A psychiatric evaluation may be ordered at any time to be completed by the psychiatric
liaison staff, especially where there are:
i. Threats or warnings about hurting or killing oneself
ii. Threats or warnings about hurting or killing someone else
b. For minor patients who need to be transferred to an inpatient child or adolescent
psychiatric facility, the psychiatric liaison and social worker will collaborate to expedite the
transfer.
Persistent and recurrent behavioral and/or other psychiatric difficulties may be identified as
needing further assessment and outpatient treatment such as:
a. General inappropriate or oppositional behavior
b. Learning disabilities

21



| Patient Care Services Policy-Manual

Care for Recalcitrant Children
Page 2 of 7

c. Violent or dangerous behavior
d. Mood changes
e. Depression
f. Complicated grief
6. All treatment disciplines are responsible to review the patient's treatment plan and strive to assist

the patient to meet their goals. When caring for minor patients with behavioral and/or
psychological difficulties, it is important to remember:

a. Always build on the positives, give the child praise and positive reinforcement when
he/she shows flexibility or cooperation.

b. Take a time-out break if you are about to make the conflict with your patient worse; not
better. This is good modeling.

c. Support your patient if they decide to take a time-out to prevent overreacting.

d. Since some children have trouble avoiding power struggles; prioritize the things you want
the child to do (choose your battles.)

e. Set up reasonable age appropriate limits, but know they will be challenged. Be united as a
health care team in being consistent with rules and boundaries.

f. Manage your own stress with patients, recognizing that you are not their parent but their
health care advocate.

7. Referrals to approved facilities authorized by the patient’s insurance shall be given to the parents

and/or guardian for follow-up. This may include either inpatient or outpatient resources.

a.

A. ATTACHMENTS:

1. Appendix A: Specific Behavioral and/or Psychological Problems Requiring Outpatient Referral
2. Appendix B: Adolescent Substance Abuse Treatment Facilities
3. Rady Children’s Hospital — San Diego

B. REFERENCES:

1. The American Academy of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry, 3615 Wisconsin Avenue, N.W.,
Washington D.C. 20016-3007, www.aacap.org.

22



| Patient Care Services Policy-Manual

Care for Recalcitrant Children

Page 3 of 7

Appendix A
Specific Behavioral and or Psychological Problems Requiring Outpatient Referral

General inappropriate or oppositional behavior

Related to Children

Marked fall in school performance.

Poor grades in school despite trying very hard.

Severe worry or anxiety, as shown by regular refusat to go to school, go to sleep or take part in
activities that are normal for the child's age.

Hyperactivity; fidgeting; constant movement beyond regular playing.

Persistent nightmares.

Persistent disobedience or aggression (longer than 6 months) and provocative opposition to
authority figures.

Frequent, unexplainable temper tantrums,

Related to Pre-Adolescents and Adolescents

Marked change in school performance.

Inability to cope with problems and daily activities.

Marked changes in sleeping and/or eating habils.

Frequent physical complaints.

Sexual acting out.

Depression shown by sustained, prolonged negative mood and attitude, often accompanied by
poor appetite, difficulty sleeping or thoughts of death.

Abuse of alcohol and/or drugs.

Intense fear of becoming obese with no relationship to actual body weight, purging food or
restricting eating,

Persistent nightmares.

Threats of self-harm or harm to others.

Self-injury or self-destructive behavior.

Frequent outbursts of anger, aggression.

Threats to run away.

Aggressive or non-aggressive consistent violation of rights of others; opposition to authority,
truancy, thefts, or vandalism.

Strange thoughts, beliefs, feelings, or unusual behaviors.

Oppositional Behaviors

Frequent temper tantrums

Excessive arguing with adults

Active defiance and refusal to comply with adult requests and rules
Deliberate attempts to annoy or upset people

Blaming others for his or her mistakes or misbehavior

Often being touchy or easily annoyed by others

Frequent anger and resentment

Mean and hateful talking when upset

Seeking revenge

Learning disabilities

Difficulty understanding and following instructions.

Trouble remembering what someone just told him or her.

Fails to master reading, spelling, writing, and/or math skills, and thus fails

Difficulty distinguishing right from left; difficulty identifying words or a tendency to reverse

letters, words, or numbers; (for example, confusing 25 with 52, "b" with "d,” or "on" with "no").

23



| Patient Care Services Rolisy-Manual

Care for Recalcitrant Children

Page 4 of 7

Lacks coordination in walking, sports, or small activities such as holding a pencil or tying a
shoelace.

Easily loses or misplaces homework, schoolbooks, or other items.

Cannot understand the concept of time; is confused by "yesterday, today, tomorrow.”

Potentially violent or dangerous behavior

Threats to run away from home

Threats to damage or destroy property

Past violent or aggressive behavior (including uncontrollable angry outbursts)
Access to guns or other weapons

Bringing a weapon to school

Past suicide attempts or threats

Family history of violent behavior or suicide attempts

Blaming others and/or unwilling to accept responsibility for one's own actions
Recent experience of humiliation, shame, loss, or rejection

Bullying or intimidating peers or younger children

A pattern of threats

Being a victim of abuse or neglect (physical, sexual, or emotional)
Witnessing abuse or violence in the home

Themes of death or depression repeatedly evident in conversation, written expressions, reading
selections, or artwork

Preoccupation with themes and acts of violence in TV shows, movies, music, magazines, comics
books, video games, and Internet sites

Mental illness, such as depression, mania, psychosis, or bipolar disorder

Use of alcohol or illicit drugs

Disciplinary problems at school or in the community (delinquent behavior)
Past destruction of property or vandalism

Cruelty to animals

Fire setting behavior

Poor peer relationships and/or social isolation

Involvement with cults or gangs

Little or no supervision or support from parents or other caring adult

Significant mood changes in the pre-adolescent and adolescent

Severe changes in mood-either unusually happy or silly, or very irritable, angry, agitated or
aggressive

Unrealistic highs in self-esteem - for example, a teenager who feels all powerful or like a
superhero with special powers

Great increase in energy and the ability to go with little or no sleep for days without feeling tired
Increase in talking - the adolescent talks too much, too fast, changes topics too quickly, and
cannot be interrupted

Distractibility - the teen's attention moves constantly from one thing to the next

Repeated high risk-taking behavior; such as, abusing alcohol and drugs, reckless driving, or
sexual promiscuity

Depression:

Irritability, depressed mood, persistent sadness, frequent crying

Thoughts of death or suicide

Loss of enjoyment in favorite activities

Frequent complaints of physical ilinesses such as headaches or stomach aches
Low energy level, fatigue, poor concentration, complaints of boredom

Major change in eating or sleeping patterns, such as oversleeping or overeating
Frequent sadness, tearfulness, crying

24



| Patient Care Services Pelisy-Manual

Care for Recalcitrant Children

Page 5 of 7

Decreased interest in activities; or inability to enjoy previously favorite activities
Hopelessness

Persistent boredom; low energy

Social isolation, poor communication

Low self esteem and guilt

Extreme sensitivity to rejection or failure

Increased irritability, anger, or hostility

Difficulty with relationships

Frequent complaints of physical illnesses such as headaches and stomachaches
Frequent absences from school or poor performance in school

Poor concentration

A major change in eating and/or sleeping patterns

Talk of or efforts to run away from home

Thoughts or expressions of suicide or self destructive behavior

Complicated grief;

An extended period of depression in which the child loses interest in daily activities and events
Inability to sleep, loss of appetite, prolonged fear of being alone

Acting much younger for an extended period

Excessively imitating the dead person

Repeated statements of wanting to join the dead person

Withdrawal from friends, or

Sharp drop in school performance or refusal to attend school

25



| Patient Care Services Rolicy-Manual

Care for Recalcitrant Children

Page 6of 7

ADOLESCENT SUBSTANCE ABUSE TREATMENT FACILITIES

PHOENIX HOUSE OF CALIFORNIA
23981 Sherilton Valley Road
Descanso, CA 91916
(619) 445-0405
Both day and residential programs offer treatment, education,
family and group therapy.
13 to 17 yis of age
Variable fees, sliding scale from $15-82653/mth, and private
insurance.
Adolescent Dav Program:
684 Requeza Street
Encinitas, CA 92024
(760) 634-7610

Adolescent Residential Program
23981 Sherilton Valley Road

Descanso, CA 91916
(619) 445-0405
12 to 15 months with full-time school program.

MCcALISTER INSTITUTE

El Cejon and at:

2821 Oceanside Blvd.

Oceanside, CA 92054

(760) 721-2743

Residential program up to 21 days.
12 to 17 yrs of age. Appt needed.
Sliding scale and ability to pay.

MITE (Affiliated with McAlister Inst.)

2964 Oceanside Blvd., Suite G

Oceanside, CA 92054

(760) 754-1393

Outpatient treatment program offers treatment, education,
group and individual therapy. They also offer screening for
residential program. Program is 3 to 6 months long for youth
between 12-17 yrs of age.

Call ahead for appt. Orientation held 2x/weck.

Program fees vary and also based on sliding scale.

AA TEEN MEETINGS (adolescents to early 20's)

o Young Peoples
1430 N. Hwy 101
Leucadia, CA
7:30 pm on Fridays

»  Young Peoples
839 2™ Street
Encinitas, CA
4pm on Sundays

e Tyi-City Medical Center
4002 Vista Way
Oceanside, CA
7:30 pm on Saturdays
Assembly Rm.2 & 3

YOUTH TO YOUTH HELPLINE
General Youth Resources
(866) 222-1886 Open Mou-Fri from 3pm-9pm

AURORA SAN DIEGO HOSPITAL

11878 Avenue of Industry

San Diego, CA 92128

(888) 565-4228

Programs include: Outpatient program, 3 days/week. Acute
inpatient detox and Partial program offers full time school
where student can earn credis.

Private insurance or private pay accepted.

CRASH SOUTH CITY

220 N. Euclid, Suites 120 & 130

San Diego, CA 92114

(619) 263-6663

Outpatient program, county funded, and sliding scale.

SHARP MESA VISTA HOSPITAL

7850 Vista Hill Avenue

San Diego, CA 92123

(858) 278-4110

Outpatient, Partial hospitalization and in-patient programs.
Must call for assessment and program placement,

17 yrs and youuger

Medi-cal, private insurance , military and private pay
accepted.

SCRIPPS MCDONALD CENTER

9896 Genesee Avenue

La Jolla, CA 92037

(858) 626-4403 for Intake

(800) 382-4357 for information

The outpatient program is a 12-week course of treatment.,
They meet three days (nine hours) per week. Sessions arc
conducted after school during the academic year and
throughout the day during swummer vacation. Program offers
education and support to families.

Age: Adolescents to 18 yrs of age.

Pleasc call for program fees.

MIRA MESA TEEN CENTER
10737 Camino Ruiz, Suite 114

San Diego, CA 92126

(858) 578-2492

Outpatient program for 12-17 yr olds.
Appt required.

Sliding scale and ability to pay.

SAN DIEGO YOUTH & COMMUNITY
SERVICES/TEEN RECOVERY CENTER
3660 Fairmount Avenue

San Diego, CA 92105

(619) 521-2250

Day treatment program with case management and
counseling,

14 to 21 yr olds. Phone and walk-ins accepted.
Variable fee for other services. Med-cal accepted.

26



| Patient Care Services Policy-Manual

Care for Recalcitrant Children

Page 7 of 7

Rady Children's Hospital - San Diego
3020 Children's Way
San Diego, CA 92123
(858) 576-1700

Institute of Behavioral Health
The Rady Children's Institute of Behavioral Health is unique because it provides comprehensive mental
health and psychosocial services to children and their families within a full-service pediatric medical
facility. Its state-of-the-art, cost-effective clinical programs also are available at outpatient clinics
throughout the county. Call (858) 966-5832 for more information.

The Institute features:

Therapy/Outpatient Psychiatry
Outpatient psychiatric services at multiple sites including including diagnostic evaluations, medication

evaluations and treatment including play therapy, group therapy, family therapy, and parent intervention,

The staff is bilingual and bicultural. Emergency and crisis intervention is available 24 hours a day
through Rady Children's Emergency Department,

Chemical Dependency and Eating Disorders

Special programs are available for adolescents in areas such as chemical dependency, eating disorders
and phobias,

Learning Disabilities and Developmental Delays
The Institute has extensive developmental evaluation programs that include evaluation and referral for:

s Autism -- provides developmental/psychological evaluation for children and refers families to
appropriate private and public education programs. Parent education and support available
through a parent group.

* Learning Disabilities -- evaluation of children for problems contributing to poor school
performance and helps parents access appropriate education support. Also assesses kindergarten
readiness.

»  Developmental Delays -- evaluates infants and children for significance of developmental delays
and helps parents access specific and appropriate intervention services.

»  Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder -- assesses attentional problems such as inattention,
impulsivity, and overactivity as it relates to school difficulties and family stress. Referrals for
medical/behavioral management and special school programs when indicated. For more
information on ADHD, please see the San Diego ADHD Website.

Mental Health

Mental health services are available at our neighborhood centers in Serra Mesa, Oceanside, El
Cajon, San Diego, La Mesa and through the San Diego School System.

27



o)
@‘9 Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES POLICY-MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 02/2012 SUBJECT: Child Passenger Restraint System
Education

REVISION DATE: POLICY NUMBER: V.E

Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 03/4205/15

Nurse Executive Council Approval: 03/4205/15

Department of Pediatrics Approval 02/16

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/1202/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 05/12

Board of Directors Approval: 05/12

A PURPOSE:

1.

2.

The purpose is to provide a method for disseminating information to parents/authorized
caregivers of infants and young children regarding child passenger safety seats.

Prior to the discharge of any child under age 8, regardiess of weight, or less than 4 feet 9 inches
(regardless of age), the parents or authorized caregiver to whom the child is being released, will
be given information regarding current child passenger restraint system. Included are the risks
associated with their non-use or misuse. A list of programs offering rental and no or low-cost
purchase will be available.

B. POLICY:

1.

Before an infant or young child is discharged, the parents or authorized caregiver to whom the

child is being released, will be verbally informed of the need to have an age-appropriate child

passenger safety seat, about Car Seat Safety and the importance that all children under 13 8

years of age ride in the back seat and be properly buckled should-be-propery-buckled-intoa

car-seat-or-boosterinthe-bask-seat-when being transported.

a. This information shall be provided to all parents of children receiving care in the Pediatric
Umt—Emergency—Reem Department and al-in Women and Newborn Servrces -s—and

i. Infants must be properly buckled ina rear—facrng care seat in the back until they
are at least 1 year old AND 20 pounds.
k1)  The American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) recommends rear facing
until the age of 2 or the maximum weight of the car seat for rear
facing.
ii. If a child is too large for a safety seat, the AAP recommends children who are 4
feet 9 inches tall or shorter ride in a belt positioning booster seat, regardless

age-angatleastdiser O inchesail

1) TGan-the child can sit all the way back/ hips-against the aute seat2

2) TheBe-the child’'s knees bend comfortably at the edge of the seat2

3) TDoes-the shoulder strap should cross over the shoulder. bestcross
avesibe-sholdor bobysenthe nogleand arm?

4) Tis-the lap belt fits low and flat on the hips aslew-as-pessibletouching

5) ~anthe ohild . ! like this for tire trin?

28



| Patient Care Services
Child Passenger Restraint System Education
Page 2 of 2

6)5) If the answer is no to any of the following, then a booster is still required
according to the California Law

b. It is illegal for a person to smoke a pipe, cigar or cigarette in a motor vehicle in which there
is a minor [Health and Safety Code Section 118948).

C. A parent, legal guardian, or other person responsible for a child who is 6 years of age or
younger may not leave that child inside a motor vehicle without being subject to the
supervision of a person who is 12 years of age or older, under either of the following
circumstances.

i. Where there are conditions that present a significant risk to the child’s health or
safety.

ii. When the vehicle’s engine is running or the keys are in the ignition, or both.

d. Other regulatory recommendations:

i. Toddlers should remain rear-facing untit they reach 2 years of age or until they
reach the upper weight and height limit of the car seat. Always follow the
manufacturer’s instructions for proper use and fit.

ii. Do not buy a used car seat if you do not know if it has been in a crash.

iii. Do not buy a car seat that is older than 6 years or has been in a crash.

iv. Children should ride in the back seat until they are 13 years old.

V. Never allow your child to place the shoulder belt behind his/her back or under the
arm.

vi. Never seat a child in front of an airbag.

vii. Never leave your child alone in or around cars.

2. Literature available in both English and Spanish will be provided outlining current state laws
regarding this issue, proper use of safety seats, and risk of death/injury associated with non-use
or misuse, including air-bag issues.

3. Prior to the discharge of the child, parent/conservator or guardian shall provide a signature that
this information was reviewed and discussed.

a. Person receiving information outlining current law requiring child passenger restraint
system, will sign the “release of a child under 8 years of age” form. The original will be
kept in the medical record and a copy will be given to the person to whom the child is
released.

4. Hospitals are required only to provide and discuss information concerning child passenger
restraint system laws.

a. Hospitals are not required to, and should not, attempt to prevent a parent (or other
authorized person) from transporting a child in a vehicle which does not have a child
passenger system.

b. Hospitals also should not instruct parents regarding how to install a car seat or help
parents install a car seat, for liability reasons. A parent with questions about appropriate
car seat installation should be referred to a local police or fire station, a local CHP office or
loan program. Parents may also call (866) SEAT-CHECK or visit www.seatcheck.org to
locate free car seat inspection facilities.

5. Facilities that provide the required information to the person to whom the child is released cannot
be held legally responsible for the failure of that person to use a child passenger restraint system.

C. REFRENCES

21.  Pacific Safety CounCII 9850 Via Pasar, it F F San Dlego CA 92126 Phone: 858-621-2313
x45-or http:/lwww. safetycouncnonllne com/full/url/

www. Kohlscarsafety org. Sa

29



‘C\)) T rl-CIty Medical Center Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE: DILUTING IV MEDICATIONS FOR IV PUSH ADMINISTRATION

Purpose: To outline the RNs responsibility when preparing IV push medications that need to be
diluted before administration

Supportive Data: Mosby’s Nursing Skills, Medication Administration: Intravenous Bolus

Equipment: 1. Blunt tip access canula syringe (3 mL, 5 mL or 10 mL)
2. 10 mL normal saline or sterile water vial
3. Filter needle
4. Alcohol swabs
5. Needle or blunt tip needle

A. PROCEDURE:
1. Verify the following against the electronic medication administration record (eMAR):
a. Patient name
b. Medication
c. Route
d. Dose
e. Administration time
Medication supplied by the manufacturer in a carpujet does not require dilution.
Verify compatibility of diluent with medication.
Check name of medication on vial/lampule label against MAR.
Check Expiration date printed on vial or ampule.
Perform hand hygiene.
Assemble medication and supplies at the admixture workstation.
Remove medication from medication-glass ampule using a filtered needle or straw.orvial

PNO oA LN

a. See Mosby's Nursmg Sk||ls Med/cat/on Adm/n/stratlon lntravenous Bolus

9. Change syrlnge access need|e to a blunt tlp access cannula syrlnge after W|thdrawmg the
medication using an ampule or vial preparation method.

10. Insert the blunt tip access cannula syringe into the 10 mL normal saline or sterile water vial (per
the TCMC IV or medication manufacturer’s guidelines) and withdraw the recommended amount
of diluent. Never Use Pre-filled Normal Saline Syringes to Dilute or Mix Medications.

11. Discard the 10 mL normal saline or sterile water vial after desired amount of diluent has been
removed.
a. 10 mL normal saline or sterile water vials may not to be used as multidose vials

12. Remove cannula from vial, expel excess air bubbles from tip of syringe, and recap the blunt
needle.

13. Administer medication to the patient IV push per the physician orders and the Tri-City Medical
Center IV Medication Guidelines or the medication manufacturer guidelines.

e Pharmacy & )
Dat Rgt::tgment Clinical Policies & Nursing Therape_utics Medical Executive Pro;:;“;::“' Board of
e Procedures Executive Council Committee Committee Committee Directors
2/09; 9/15 06/11, 12/15 06/11, 01/16 03/16 07/11. 03/16 08/11 08/11

30



‘@) Tri-City Medical Center Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE: IMMEDIATE USE STERILIZATION, INTRAOPERATIVE

Purpose: To ensure safe and effective rapid sterilization of surgical instruments and devices
intended for immediate use in an operative procedure. The effectiveness of the
sterilization process is dependent upon effective cleaning. The process of
sterilization is negatively affected by the amount of bioburden and the number,
type, and inherent resistance of microorganisms, including biofilms, on the items
to be sterilized. Soils, oils, and other materials may shield microorganisms on
items from contact with the sterilant or combine with and inactivate the sterilant.

A DEFINITIONS:
1. Decontamination: the process of removing disease-producing microorganisms and rendering the

object safe for handling.

2. Immediate Use Steam Sterilization (1USS): rapid steam sterilization of unwrapped instruments
and accessories for immediate use in emergencies or when the only instrument available of its
kind is contaminated.

3. Implant: tissue or material placed within the body with the intent of permanent or long-term
retention. (i.e., over thirty days).

4. Steam Sterilization: saturated steam under pressure in a process that destroys all forms of
microbial life including bacteria, viruses, spores, and fungi.

5. Liguid (Peracetic Acid) Sterilization: a method of sterilization used for items that are heat
sensitive and can be immersed. Peracetic Acid (Steris®) processors are maintained and operated
in the Operating Room Clean-Utility-Areaand Sterile Processing Department (SPD).

B. POLICY:

1. Decontamination and sterilization activities shall be done in compliance with current infection
control standards, state and federal regulations and Tri-City Medical Center policies and
procedures.

2. All autoclaves will be operated per manufacturer’s instructions.

3. All ltems will be thoroughly cleaned and rinsed prior to sterilization.

4, A Class V integrator will be placed in every basket/tray of instruments/equipment when
performing Immediate Use Steam Sterilization.

5. Autoclave doors will be kept closed when not is use.

6. Items processed via IUS shall be used immediately and not stored.

7. Sterilizer function shall be monitored daily with mechanical, chemical, and biological indicators to
meet all of the monitoring parameters established for each type of sterilizer.

8. A biological indicator (Bl) shall be run with each load containing an implant. The results of the Bl
are reported to the surgeon as soon as available and documented on the Immediate Use
Sterilization Log.

9. Steris machines shall be tested daily, including both diagnostic and chemical tests.

2.10. Sterilizer logs shall be kept for a period of seven (7) years.

C. PROCEDURE: ,
1. Thoroughly clean items prior to IUS, according to manufacturer’s instructions.
2, Immediate Use Steam Sterilization:
a. Place items in an open bottom mesh pan, transfer pan or FlashPak for sterilization.
b. Place a Class V integrator in all pans.
c. Obtain two 3M Attest 1292 Rapid Readout Biological Indicators with the same lot number
(brown cap, 3-hour readout) when item to be flashed is an implant.
i. Place one of the Biological Indicators in the load to be sterilized.
Department Clinical Policies & | Nursing Executive | Infection Control Medical Executive Pro:fefsas;irgnal Board of
Review Procedures Council Committee Committee Committee Directors
5/10;8/12; 8/15 5/10; 8/12, 9/15 8/12, 09/15 03/16 06/10; 10/12. 03/16 08/10; 11/12 08/10;12/12

3




Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual
Elash-Sterilizationntracperativelmmediate Use Sterilization, Intraoperative

Page 2 of 4

ii. Set aside the second Biological Indicator to use as the control during incubation.
This ampule is not run in the autoclave.

Select the appropriate sterilization cycle, according to manufacturer’s written

instructions for Immediate Use Sterilization. Follow autoclave manufacturer’'s written

instructions to load sterilizer, close door, and select cycle for load contents. Cycles are:

i. Cycle 1:_4-minute Prevac Cycle (Express): For large amounts of instruments,
porous items, instruments with lumens, linen lined pans, surgical implants

ii. Cycle 2: 4-minute Prevac Cycle (20-minute dry): for wrapped loads; may
occasionally be used if manufacturer lists these parameters as necessary for
sterilization of a specific item; not usually used by OR staff for |US.

il. Cycle 3: 3-minute Gravity Cycle: For three or fewer single part, non lumened,
non-porous instruments

iv. Cycle 4: 10-minute Gravity Cycie: more than three metal instruments, instruments
with lumens, porous items (i.e.., rubber, plastic, glass).

At the end of the sterilization process, the staff member who removes the load shall
review and initial the print-con strip. At the end of the day the data strip is taped to the
sterilizer log sheet as a permanent record.
If any of the parameters (i.e., time, temperature, pressure, completion of cycle) are not
reached, the load is not stenle
i. Circle the parameters that do not meet the acceptable standard.
ii. Notify the SPD Manager, the SPD Shift Supervisor, and/or the OR Assistant Nurse
Manager/Designee of the sterilizer malfunction.
1) Place tape across the sterilizer door with legerdan “OUT OF SERVICE”
sign.
2) Notify Clinical Engineering (Ext. 7711).
3) Enter a Work Order via TCMC intranet.
4) In surgery, make note on the schedule board and pass information at
report.
5) DO NOT USE the sterilizer until Clinical Engineering has completed
repairs. AND-A major repair requires three (3) successive Biological
Tests and for the Pre-Vac cycle three (3) bowie dick tests have been
returned as “NEGATIVE".
iii. Remove supplies from sterilizer and reprocess in another sterilizer.
iv. Document in the sterilizer log book that the load was aborted and reprocessed.

Liquid (Peracetic Acid) Sterilization- Steris:

a.

b.

o

Assemble clean instruments in the appropriate Steris tray and tray insert,

according to manufacturer’s instructions.

Obtain appropriate quick connector (matched to manufacturer and equipment

identification number) and connect to Steris tray and scope ports, if applicable.

Ensure all ports/lumens of the device to be sterilized are attached to a connector.

Obtain Steris chemical indicator and attach to orange holder. Place in the Steris

tray with the item to be sterilized.

i Check expiration date of chemical indicator before use.

ii. Chemical indicator starts blue and turns pink when passing.

Place lid on the Steris tray insert.

Place Steris S40 sterilant container in sterilant chamber and insert aspirating probe

according to manufacturer’s instructions. Ensure tubing is not kinked.

i. Follow precautions for safe handling of peracetic acid according to
manufacturer’s instructions and Surgical Services Policy: Peracetic Acid:
Disposal of.

Close lid of Steris machine and press START to begin cycle. 32



Patient Care Services RProcedure-Manual
Flash-SterilizationIntracperativelmmediate Use Sterilization, Intraoperative

Page 3 of 4

2.

3-5.

g.

Upon completion of cycle, check printout to ensure the cycle has completed and
the following sterilization parameters have been met:

i. Temperature (45.5-60°C)

ii. Exposure time (6 minutes)

iii. Concentration (greater than 175)

Maintainenanee-ef sterility andduring transport to the point of use.:

a.

b.

Immediate Use Steam Sterilization:

i. Avoid tratfic-in-the-substerile roem-when-removing sterile items from the autoclave
in the presence of un-masked personnel.

ii. Open the sterilizer door cautiously, and prepare to remove the sterilizer tray for
transport to the operating room.

1) The circulating nurse shall hold the sub-sterile door open for the scrub
person.

2) The scrub person, with gown, gloves, and sterile hand towels, shall remove
trays from the sterilizer.

3) Drape a ring stand or prep stand with a sterile impervious drape to hold the

trays prior to transfer to the sterile field.
iii. At the sterile field (point of use), present or open the tray and inspect the Class V
Integrator to ensure parameters have been achieved.

1) The scrub person must also verify the Class V Integrator strip changed
color into the “pass” range before removing instruments from the container.
2) The scrub person hands off the Class V Integrator strip to the circulating
nurse to affix to the Immediate Use Sterilization log sheet.
iv. If the Integrator did not change color into the “pass” range, the load is not
considered sterile and must be run again.
1) If the indicator line has not moved past the “Accept/Reject” mark, on the

second load, place the sterilizer “OUT OF SERVICE”.

2) Notify the SPD Manager, the SPD Shift Supervisor, and/or the OR
Assistant Nurse Manager/Designee of the sterilizer malfunction.

3) Place tape across sterilizer door with legendan “OUT OF SERVICE’ sign.

4) Notify Clinical Engineering (Ext. 7711).

5) Enter a Work Order via TCMC Intranet.

6) In surgery make note on the schedule board and pass information at
report.

7) DO NOT USE the sterilizer until Clinical Engineering has completed
repairs. A major repair requires ANB-three (3) successive Biological
Tests and for the Pre-Vac cycle three (3) bowie dick tests have been
returned as “NEGATIVE”".

Steris:

i. Remove the sterilized tray insert from the Steris machine. Instruments that
remain in the covered tray insert are sterile and may be delivered to the point
of use.

il If applicable, ensure connector is still connected to the scope.

wiii.  Verify chemical indicator changed color into the pink acceptable color range.

If the item immediate use sterilized was an implant, the scrub person hands off the Biological
Indicator to the circulating nurse, who places it along with the control Bl ampule, into the incubator
according to manufacturer’s written instructions.

a.
b.

C.

Results must be read in 3 hours and reported to the implanting surgeon.

Implants sterilized via Immediate Use Sterilization shall be quarantined on the sterile field

until results of the Bl are obtained.

If a positive test Biological Indicator occurs, notify the surgeon and the OR Assistant

Nurse Manager/Designee.

i. The OR Assistant Nurse Manager/Designee will notify the implanting physician (if
not already aware) and the infection control practitioner.

ii. The primary circulator must complete a Quality Review Report

33



Patient Care Services Rrosedure-Manual

Flash-Sterilization.tntraoperativelmmediate Use Sterilization, Intraoperative
Page 4 of 4

D.

DOCUMENTATION:

1.

2:3.

Document every load run in the autoclave on the appropriate Immediate Use Sterilization Log
sheet. Information recorded from an IUSS cycle shall include:

cpoo

Q™o

— X‘_ -

Sterilizer number

Date

OR suite number

Name and signature of person starting cycle and removing sterilized items at the
end of the cyclelnitials ofoperator

Cycle number

Load contents

Identify if load contains implant

Print-Con strip record of cycle parameters (i.e., exposure time, temperature, pressure,
vacuum)

Patient Identification label.

Class V integrator for IUS load is affixed to the log sheet

{dentify-rReason for IUS

Biological Indicator Besumentationinformation, if the load contains an implant:

i. Incubator well numbers of test ampule and control ampule

ii. Date/Time/Initials when ampule’s; is placed in incubator

iii. Date/Time/Initials when test read/completed (3-hours)

iv. Test results (“+” or “-*)

V. Control results (“+” or “-*)

vi. Lot # of biological indicators.

Document every load run in the Steris, including:

~T@me a0 Ty

Steris machine ID

Date

Patient identification label

Cycle number

OR suite in which item will be used
Item sterilized

Affix processed chemical indicator
Reason for IUS

Initials of person sterilizing item

Accurate and complete records are required for process verification, infection control monitoring,
and sterilizer malfunction analysis.

2 Storlizer | hall bo ket § o of 7 _

REFERENCES:

1. AORN Preope -Guidelines for Perioperative
Practice (2015).

4:2. Rothrock, Jane. (2015). Alexander’s Care of the Patient in Surgery, 15" Edition. Mosby.

34



| This copy is with TRACKED CHANGES

Distribution:

@‘9 Tri-City Medical Center Patient Care Services
PROCEDURE: MICROMEDEX CARENOTES
Purpose: To define the procedure for accessing Micromedex patient and/or family education

handouts via Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC) Intranet.

Supportive Data: CareNotes are patient education instructions accessed via TCMC intranet on a variety of
healthcare topics to provide information to patients and/or their caregivers on
individual health care needs. The CareNotes may also be assessed to assist TCMC
staff when prowdmg educatlon to patlents and/or thelr caregivers.. ZFhey—a-Fe-used-m

Equipment: Computer with access to TCMC Intranet
Printer linked to computer

A. POLICY:
1. Micromedex CareNotes may be used with other printed patient education to provide education
information for patients and their family on diseases, surgical procedures, diets, medications

I laboratory information.-througheut theirhespital-stay-and-at discharge.
B. DEFINITIONS:

1. CareNotes Patient Education Handouts: Patient education handouts which provide disease,
treatment, dietary, medications and laboratory information.
2. Drug Information: Patient education medication handouts

| 3. Keyword Search Tab: Ar-optien-whish-allows the user to search disease, medication,
treatment, dietary, and laboratory handouts by relevant terminology. Options are limited by the
topic selected.
4, Care and Condition Titles: Ar-option-which-allows-the-users-te-use-an alphabetical
categorized -list of education to-search-fordisease-and-treatment-handouts
5. Drug Titles: Ar-eption—which-allows the user to use an alphabetical list to search for
medication handouts.
| 6. Lab Titles: Ar-optien;-whish-allows the user to use an alphabetical list to search for selected
laboratory and diagnostics handouts.

7. Hot List: A unit specific department customized lists of Micromedex handouts. The handouts
are specific to physician instructions and/or to standards of practice.

8. Customizing; Allows end users to insert patient specific-text in CareNotes which contain
blanks.

#9. Conversion Calculator: A calculator used by healthcare workers to convert different units
of measurements.

C. PROCEDURE:
1. Double click on the TCMC Icon of the maln screen of a computer.
2. Select Micromedex{highligh cterenes

3. Select CareNotes éNg#}hgh%Mre#emede*Heakheape-Senes
Select the appropriate Topic tab. The Topic tabs include the following:

i Keyword Search

ii. Hot Lists

iii. Care & Conditions Titles
iv. Drug Titles

V. Lab T|tles

Clinical Policies & Nurse Executive Medical Executive Professional

Department Review Procedures Committee Committee Affairs Committee

Board of Directors

| 8/03; 04/09 12/11, 02116 12/11, 02/16 H42nla 2/12 2/12




| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual
Micromedex CareNotes

Page 2 of 4

e diles

s——sbTiles

Keyword Search:

a. Type a the-key word of the education topic i.e., disease, diet or condition name,
then and select (click) Search:-

b. Select the appropriate CareNote(s) from the Care and Condition Titles list then
select (click) Select Titles-

c. Select the CareNote language from the Document Type. The Document Types vary
based on the topic selected. The available Document Types are as follows:
i. General Information
ii. Inpatient Care

&iii. Ambulatory Care (i-e—English-orSpanish):
\ftorCare.] .
| ot C

y———Erughloies
e-d. Review the selected CareNote(s) by selecting (clicking) Print or Add to Print List.
fe. Print the CareNote( )

Care & Conditions: Titles

a Select the Care & Conditions categorytepis-

b Select the desired CareNote (s}

c. Select the CareNote language for the Document Type
d

tre—English-or-Spanish).
Review the selected CareNote(s) by selecting (clicking) Print or Add to Print List.
e-e.  Print the CareNote(s)-

&——Selectthe-CareNote-instrustion type:
L FreCore nshoslion
Af: Instroct
Inpationt.C
g ileies

e Revdewine-Caeoblatals)

Drug Titles:

a Select the alphabet corresponding to the desired Drug Title i.e., medication-
b Select the medication from the dDrug Titles list-

c. Select the CareNote language from the Document Type list

d

Review the selected CareNote(s) by selecting (clicking) Prmt or Add to Print L|st
&e-e. Print the CareNote(s)

Lab Titles:

a. Select the lab or diagnostic from the Browse Tests List or type the lab or diagnostic in
the Jump to: box-

b. Click the Select button-

c. Select the CareNote language from the Document Type list -(-e--English-or-Spanish)-
d. Review the selected CareNote(s) by selecting (clicking) Print or Add to Print List.

36



| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual
Micromedex CareNotes

Page 3 of 4

c-e.  Print the CareNote(s)

8. Hot Lists: Department specific procedures may require the use of a specific type of document
and limits may restrict access to certain document types.
a. Select the Hot List tab-
b. Select your departmentunit, then select (click) GO-
c. Select the Hot List topic-
d. Select the CareNote language from the Document Type list
e. Review the selected CareNote(s) by selecting (clicking) Print or Add to Print List.
f. Print the CareNote(s)
e:9. Printthe-CareNotels).

9. Customizing:

g.a. Customizing of CareNotes is not allowed at TCMC.

10. Conversion Calculator:

a. Select (click) Conversion Calculator
b. Enter the unit of measure requiring conversion
c. Select (click) Convert

D. DOCUMENTATION:
1. Document patient and/or family receipt of the handouts on the Education All Topics powerform.

37



| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual
Micromedex CareNotes
Page 4 of 4

2. Document as appropriate for Behavioral Health Unit (BHU) or Neonatal Intensive Care Unit
(NICU).

E.

E.

LIMITATIONS:

1. 3000+ CareNotes in several categories are available.

2. Department and/or location may limit limitations on access, customization, and printing. The
Department Director has reviewed these limitations.

3. Physicians and Educators may request additions to the unit specific Hot Lists.

4, Educators, Shift Supervisors, and managers may customize CareNotes as needed.

REFERENCES:

1. Reuie

B F i Truven Health Analytlcs Inc.
(2016) Mlcromedex carenotes system Retrieved from Tri-City Medical Center intranet.

38



This is a CLEAN COPY

~ Distribution: ) .
@‘J) Tri-City Medical Center Patient Care Services
PROCEDURE: MICROMEDEX CARENOTES
Purpose: To define the procedure for accessing Micromedex patient and/or family education

handouts via Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC) Intranet.

Supportive Data:

CareNotes are patient education instructions accessed via TCMC intranet on a variety of
healthcare topics to provide information to patients and/or their caregivers on individual
health care needs. The CareNotes may also be assessed to assist TCMC staff when
providing education to patients and/or their caregivers..

Equipment:

Computer with access to TCMC Intranet
Printer linked to computer

A POLICY:

1.

Micromedex CareNotes may be used with other printed patient education to provide education
information for patients and their family on diseases, surgical procedures, diets, medications
laboratory information.

B. DEFINITIONS:

1.

SIN

ook

CareNotes Patient Education Handouts: Patient education handouts which provide disease,
treatment, dietary, medications and laboratory information.

Drug Information: Patient education medication handouts

Keyword Search Tab: allows the user to search disease, medication, treatment, dietary, and
laboratory handouts by relevant terminology. Options are limited by the topic selected.

Care and Condition Titles: an alphabetical categorized list of education handouts

Drug Titles: allows the user to use an alphabetical list to search for medication handouts.
Lab Titles: allows the user to use an alphabetical list to search for selected laboratory and
diagnostics handouts.

Hot List: A unit specific department customized lists of Micromedex handouts. The handouts
are specific to physician instructions and/or to standards of practice.

Customizing: Allows end users to insert patient specific-text in CareNotes which contain
blanks.

Conversion Calculator: A calculator used by healthcare workers to convert different units of
measurements.

C. PROCEDURE:

1.
2.
3.

4.

Double click on the TCMC Icon of the main screen of a computer.
Select Micromedex.
Select CareNotes.
a. Select the appropriate Topic tab. The Topic tabs include the following:
i. Keyword Search
ii. Hot Lists
iii. Care & Conditions Titles
iv. Drug Titles
V. Lab Titles

Keyword Search:

a. Type a key word of the education topic i.e., disease, diet or condition name, then select
(click) Search

b. Select the appropriate CareNote(s) from the Care and Condition Titles list then select
(click) Select Titles

c. Select the CareNote language from the Document Type. The Document Types vary

based on the topic selected. The available Document Types are as follows:
i. General Information
ii. inpatient Care

Department Review

Clinical Policies &
Procedures

Nurse Executive
Committee

Medical Executive
Committee

Professional
Affairs Committee

Board of Directors

8/03; 04/08

12/11, 02/16

12/11, 02/16

n/a

2/12

2112

39



Patient Care Services
Micromedex CareNotes
Page 2 of 2

ii. Ambulatory Care
Review the selected CareNote(s) by selecting (clicking) Print or Add to Print List.
Print the CareNote(s)
are & Conditions Titles
Select the Care & Conditions category
Select the desired CareNote
Select the CareNote language for the Document Type.
Review the selected CareNote(s) by selecting (clicking) Print or Add to Print List.
Print the CareNote(s)
rug Titles:
Select the alphabet corresponding to the desired Drug Title i.e., medication
Select the medication from the Drug Titles list
Select the CareNote language from the Document Type list
Review the selected CareNote(s) by selecting (clicking) Print or Add to Print List.
Print the CareNote(s)
ab Titles:
Select the lab or diagnostic from the Browse Tests List or type the lab or diagnostic in
the Jump to: box
Click the Select button
Select the CareNote language from the Document Type list
Review the selected CareNote(s) by selecting (clicking) Print or Add to Print List
. Print the CareNote(s)
8. Hot Lists: Department specific procedures may require the use of a specific type of document
and limits may restrict access to certain document types.
a Select the Hot List tab
b Select your department, then select (click) GO
c Select the Hot List topic
d Select the CareNote language from the Document Type list
e. Review the selected CareNote(s) by selecting (clicking) Print or Add to Print List.
f. Print the CareNote(s)
g
a
a
b
c

geooToQOOQ

PCrooo oD

coo

]

)

9. Customi.zing:
Customizing of CareNotes is not allowed at TCMC.
10. C

Select (click) Conversion Calculator
Enter the unit of measure requiring conversion
. Select (click) Convert

onversion Calculator:

D.  DOCUMENTATION:

1. Document patient and/or family receipt of the handouts on the Education All Topics powerform.

2. Document as appropriate for Behavioral Health Unit (BHU) or Neonatal Intensive Care Unit
(NICU).

E; LIMITATIONS:

1. 3000+ CareNotes in several categories are available.

2. Department and/or location may limit limitations on access, customization, and printing. The
Department Director has reviewed these limitations.

3. Physicians and Educators may request additions to the unit specific Hot Lists.

4, Educators, Shift Supervisors, and managers may customize CareNotes as needed.

E. REFERENCES:

1. Truven Health Analytics, Inc. (2016). Micromedex carenotes system. Retrieved from Tri-City
Medical Center intranet.

40



‘C‘» Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES ROLICY-MANUAL

ISSUE DATE:

07/11 SUBJECT: Obstetrical Patients, Triage

REVISION DATE: 03/12 POLICY NUMBER: IV.XX

Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 42/4106/15

Nursing Executive Council Approval: 0141207/15
Department of OB/GYN Approval: 12/15
Department of Emergency Medicine Approval: 01/16
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 02/1202/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 03/12
Board of Directors Approval: 03/12

A PURPOSE:

1.

To provide guidelines for determining appropriate disposition and treatment of obstetrical patients
at different stages of gestational age who present to Labor and Delivery (L&D) and the
Emergency Department (ED).

B. POLICY:

1.

4.5.

Obstetrical (OB) patients; with gestational age (GA) of greater than or equal to 20 weeks through
40 or more weeks, will be evaluated in L&D for obstetrical issues.

a. Refer to Patient Care Services (PCS) Standardized Procedure: Medical Screening to Rule
Out Labor
b. Patients 20 weeks or greater presenting to ED for pregnancy related symptoms shall be

transferred to L&D via a wheelchair or gurney avoiding supine position during transport.
b.c. Admission of a 16-20 week gestation pending loss of pregnancy will be considered
on a case by case basis by the Charge Nurse in Labor and Delivery.
Pregnant patlents with non- obstetrlcal complamtslconcerns, shaII be evaluated and treated

a. Major trauma victims

izb. Patients involved in a motor vehicle crash with cervical spine precautions in place

a-c. Patients with unstable airway, difficulty breathing, or painful breathing

b.d. Patients with cardiac complaints

e-e. Patients needing surgical procedures

ef. Patients with orthopedic complications or ocular emergencies

g. Patients with Infectious Perinatal Disease (Varicella, Parvovirus) or suspicious rash which
may be contagious to other pregnant patient.

The ED physician mayean consult and involve the OB physician and L&D Charge nurse at

any time to coordinate perinatal evaluation as indicated.

i-a.  This can involve a trained L&D Nurse performing external fetal monitoring
evaluation in the ED or the stable patient being transported to the L&D unit for
monitoring.

Patients less than 20 weeks GA will be seen in the ED pursuant to ED protocols. OB consult shall

be obtained as deemed necessary by the ED physician.

Patients who present to the ED whose delivery is imminent or “in the process of delivering” shall

be delivered in the ED. If the ED staff require nreed help from an available OB physician/Certified

41



| Patient Care Services Policy-Manual

Obstetrical Patients, Triage

Page 2 of 2

5:6.

6-7.

8.

8-9.

a1.
2.
3.
4.

9:10.

Nurse Midwife, the Public Branch Exchange (PBX) operator shall be notified to generate a STAT
overhead page for “any OB to the ED, Station XX.”

a. Refer to the PCS Standardized Procedure: Precipitous Vaginal Delivery

Patients with a gestational age less than 20 weeks, who present to L&D, will be escorted to the
ED for evaluation.

a. The L&D charge nurse/designee shall notify the ED charge nurse/designee of the
patient’s disposition, including any medical information revealed by the patient or her
family

Evaluation of patients less than 20 weeks gestation may occur in L&D at the joint discretion of the
Attending OB Physician and the shift L&D charge nurse/designee; such conditions may include,
but are not limited to:

a. Pyelonephritis

b. Diabetes

c. Uncontrolled asthma

d. Pneumonia

e. Incompetent cervix

ef. Inevitable/ Active miscarriage

When an obstetrical patient has delivered her newborn outside of the hospital and presents to
ED, the ED staff shall

a. Assess mother and newborn immediately to determine stability

b. Notify L&D and the Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU) Assistant-Nurse-Manager
(ANM)/charge nurses/designee of expected admissions.

b-

C. Band the mother and newborn before disposition to the appropriate departments
i. Refer to PCS Procedure: Identification of Newborns

If the patient is being transported by ambulance, and both mother and newborn appear stable,

based on the Paramedic/ field reports, the ED triage nurse shali:

a. Notify L&D and the NICU ANM/charge nurse/designee of the expected time of arrival
for these direct admissions.

b. Care of the mother and newborn will be directed by the L&D ANM/charge nurse/designee
including responsibility to:

i. Notify the patient’s’ OB provider or OB on “unassigned call” and Pediatrician or
Pediatrican on call, if patient does not have a provider on staff

If the patient is being transported by ambulance, and mother and/or newborn are not in stable

condition, the ED triage nurse shall:

a. Notify L&D and-the-NICU- ANM/charge nurse/designee, of the need to have the se-that
the-NICUteam-and-attending OB provider or OB on “unassigned call’- and L&D Nurse
ean-be-present in the ED upen-arrival-of-the-metherto provide specialty assistance, if
indicated. . and/ornewbern-

b. Initiate a Code Caleb for the newborn, per patient-care-services-PCS pPolicy;: Code
Caleb Team Mobilization.

C. RELATED DOCUMENTS:

PCS Policy: Code Caleb Team Mobilization

PCS Procedure: Identification of Newborns

PCS Standardized Procedure: Medical Screening to Rule Out Labor
PCS Standardized Procedure: Precipitous Vaginal Delivery

42



@‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES
ISSUE DATE: 12/11 SUBJECT: Point of Care (POC) New Test/Method
Request and Implementation
REVISION DATE: POLICY NUMBER: IV.BB
Department Approval: 04/15
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval:  42/1405/15
Nurse Executive Council Approval: 014/1205/15
Department of Pathology Approval: 03/1203/16
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): n/a
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 05/12
Board of Directors Approval: 05/12
A PURPOSE:
1. To ensure that:
a. POC testing meets the needs of the patients served, is performed correctly by non-
laboratory staff, and is cost effective.
b. POC testing is approved by the appropriate committees at a hospital level before
implementation.
2. Devices, tests, and analytes available as POC testing are continually improving and expanding.

However, POC testing is not appropriate for use in all situations. New test and method requests
must be evaluated before implementation.

B. POLICY:
1. POC testing is under the direction, authority, jurisdiction and responsibility of the Laboratory
Medical Director.
2. Any patient testing, including testing that is performed outside of the clinical laboratory by non-

clinical personnel, must conform to state and federal regulations. The Clinical Value Analysis
Team (CVAT) reviews all requests for new testing. Once approved by the CVAT, the laboratory
and POC Department will establish standards for POC testing, evaluate POC devices or tests
before implementation, and monitor all POC testing sites for compliance.

3. Requestors must complete and submit the form “Request for Approval of New POC Test/Method”
to POC Coordinator (POCC) and/or Lab Leadership Team.

a. The front of the form explains the extent and use of desired testing, and must be filled out
in full by the requesting department.

b. The back of the form evaluates the financial impact of testing. This can be completed with
assistance from the POCC, but the requesting department must be fully aware of all costs
involved.

4, Requestors must then submit to the Clinical Value Analysis Team according to current CVAT
policies. CVAT reviews all requests for new POC testing taking into consideration the following
aspects
a. Medical need for decreased turn around time
b. Procedure complexity
C. Regulatory compliance
d. Ongoing competency
e. Cost

5. Following approval for consideration, the POCC and Lab Leadership Team assigns oversight to

the appropriate personnel who will

43



| Patient Care Services
Point of Care New Test/Method Request and Implementation
Page 2 of 2

a. Assess available technology for the requested test by contacting vendors.

b. Evaluate and make recommendation to the POC Committee.

c. Perform test method validation according to regulatory requirements and obtain approval
by the Laboratory Medical Director.

d. Create written policies/ procedures that are clear to users and meet all regulatory
requirements.

e. Establish quality control policy to be followed by testing personnel with regular review of
data by responsible staff.

f. Enroll in appropriate proficiency testing or establish alternative proficiency testing if

needed.

Ensure testing personnel are trained and demonstrate competency prior to performing

patient testing.

Request Lab Information System or Information System input, if needed.

Communicate to physicians new test availability.

The Laboratory Medical Director and POCC review and approve all data for test

implementation prior to patient testing. The Lab Medical Director is involved in the

selection of all equipment and supplies, in accordance with College of American

Pathology (CAP) regulations.

6. CAP requirements for POC testing include the following general items. Refer to the POCC and
current CAP POC testing checklist for specific requirements.
a. Proficiency testing is performed at intervals determined by the subscribed survey, in a

timely manner, as similar to patient testing as possible, by personnel who perform patient
tests, and rotated among all testing personnel.

——F Q@

b. Testing Personnel must adhere to manufacturer instructions and written procedure.

c. Results are reported in the medical record. Critical Results are handled appropriately.

d. Reagents are stored properly. New lots and shipments are evaluated appropriately before
use.

e. Equipment maintenance is performed and documented to meet manufacturer
requirements.

f. Personnel must be trained and competency assessed according to the current Point of

Care Testmg Competency Assessment Pollcy upen—h#e—é-menths—aﬁephwe—w—

g. Quality Controls are performed and documented at required intervals.

7. Managers overseeing departments performing POC testing must understand and support the
Federal/ State/ Agency/ and Organizational standards. The following statement must be read and
agreed to, and signed on the form ‘Request for Approval of New POC Test/Method' :

a. | have read and understand the “POC New Test/Method Implementation” Policy and the
CAP requirements for POC testing. | am qualified as a manager and will assume
responsibility for testing, including all aspects of training and certification of personnel,
quality controls, proficiency testing, competency checks, routine instrument maintenance,
recording of all test results and all other required documentation. | also understand that all
supplies are the responsibility of the performing department. The privilege to perform
testing will be removed if requirements are not met and maintained.

C. REFERENCES:

1. College of American Pathology. CAP Accreditation Program. Point of Care Testing Checklist Tri-
| City Medical Center, CAP Number: 2317601. Version: 86-47-201004.21.2014.
2. College of American Pathology. CAP Accreditation Program. Team Leader Assessment of

Director and Quality Checklist Tri-City Medical Center, CAP Number: 2317601. Version:
| 06-17-201004.21.14.

D. ATTACHMENTS:

1. Request for Approval of New Point of Care Test/Method
2. Refer to current forms required by CVAT.

44



DELETE - Duplicate to PCS Point

‘@)) . . of Care New Test Method Request
Tri-City Medical Center | and Implementation Policy

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES-POLICY-MANUAL

Department Approval: 04/15
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 04/1205/15
Nursing Executive Council Approval 04/1205/15
Department of Pathology Approval: 03/16
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): n/a
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 07/12

Board of Directors Approval: 07/12




Patient Care Services Policy Manual
Point of Care Testing — IV.K
Page 2 of 3

46



Patient Care Services Paolicy Manual
Point of Care Testing — IV.K
Page 3 of 3

—AltachmentA
Testusedfor Lab
EDA/CLIA |s inalDi is*! | Confi ron/Eoll

Activated-Cletting Meoderate ¥ Ne- ACTTesting-using

Heparin-Dose .

Response; HMS-Plus-Hemestasis
Activated-Glotting Time,;
Dose-Response

Blood Gas Moderate * Ne- Siemens Rapidpoint 405
of-Maginal-Fluid

Glucose,whole Waived T Yes—Forcritical Whole-Blood-Glucese

bloed results Testing-using-the
SureStep-FElexx-Meter
Siates

resuits HemeoGCue HB-204

Analyzer

INRwhole-blood Waived T Yes-—For-highresults | WholeBleod RPT/ANR
using-the- Roghe
CoaguChek-XSPlus
Meter
FEluid

Oeceult-Blood; Waived s No Measuring-Oceult Blead-in

GastricFecal Siool-and Gastric
Contents

Fusfursaf Medorais D Rles Blaeental-Alpha-

Amnisure Amnisure-test-for Rupture
of Fetal- Membranes
(ROM)
Dipstick M )
L’“.'“e ES.ESE'GIE’ ‘;"la. 5‘5||s
Status

47



(C‘J) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES-RPOLICY-MANUAL

ISSUE DATE:

3/02 SUBJECT: Staffing Requirement, Development
of

REVISION DATE: 6/03, 12/03, 6/05, 7/06, 8/08, 03/11, POLICY NUMBER: VIil.B

312
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 04/4203/16
Nursing Executive Committee Approval: 04/1203/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 07/12
Board of Directors Approval: 07/12
A. POLICY:
1. Staffing Grid requirements shall be developed for each nursing unit by-the-Directors-and

Clinical{Operations-Managers-and approved by the Chief Nurse Executive annually during the
budgetary process.

Budgeted staffing requirements shall be based on hours of nursing care to be delivered per
patient day, patient delivery system, patient care requirements, minimum staffing requirements,
average acuity, ratios, and projected average daily census.

Budgeted staffing requirements shall be reviewed at least once per year by the Directors and
Clinical Operations Managers at the time of the budget process and revised if indicated by the
staffing plan evaluation process.

Once staffing requirements are determined, master staffing plans are developed with Finance

by-the-Staffing-Resource-Office-in collaboration with management and approved by the Chief

Nurse Executive.
Master staffing plans shall include the following elements:

a. Department
b. Staffing Summary required by census level or volume
c. Projected skill mix requirements

Productive hours worked per patient day shall include: Assistant Nurse Managers, RNs, ACTs,
Techs, Unit Secretaries, Clinical/Operations Managers, Clinical Educators, and Directors. Non-
productive hours worked per calendar day shall include: orientation, education time, jury duty,
Paid Time Off (PTO), and bereavement and are tracked in the budgets.

Current Staffing Grids are published-available on the intranet. inthe-Staffing-Reference

M I ilablo-inthe Staffing R Senter.

48



@‘9 Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES
| ISSUE DATE: NEW SUBJECT: Sterile Aseptic-Technique

REVISION DATE(S):

Department Approval Date(s): 06/15
Clinical Policies and Procedures Approval Date(s): 09/15
Nurse Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 09/15
Operating Room Committee Approval Date(s): 01/16
Infection Control Committee Approval Date(s): 03/16
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): 03/16

Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s):
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

B-C.

PURPOSE:

1. To provide guidelines for establishing and maintaining a sterile field.

DEFINITIONS:

1. Sterile: The absence of all living microorganisms. Synonym: aseptic.

2. Sterile field: The area surrounding the site of the incision or perforation into tissue, or the
site of introduction of an instrument into a body orifice that has been prepared for an
invasive procedure. The area includes all working areas, furniture, and equipment
covered with sterile drapes and drape accessories, and all personnel in sterile attire.

3. Sterile technique: The use of specific actions and activities to prevent contamination and
maintain sterility of identified areas during operative or other invasive procedures.

STERILE FIELD:

1. A sterile field shall be constantly monitored and maintained.
a. Sterile fields shall be prepared as close as possible to the time of use.
b. The sterile field should be prepared as elese near as possible to the location where it will
be used.
C. Sterile fields may be covered with a sterile drape if there is an unanticipated delay, or

during periods of increased activity.

i. When sterile fields are covered, they shall be covered in a manner that allows the
cover to be removed without bringing the part of the cover that falls below the
sterile field above the sterile field.

d. Unguarded sterile fields shall be considered contaminated.

e. Every team member shall observe for events that may contaminate the sterile field and
initiate corrective action.

f. Conversation shall be minimal in the-eperatingroem presence of a sterile field.

g. Non-perforating devices shall be used to secure equipment to the sterile field.

h. Non-sterile equipment brought into or over the sterile field shall be draped with sterile

material.

2. Sterile drapes shall be used to establish a sterile field.
a. Surgical drapes shall be selected according to Association of pPeriQoperative Registered

Nurses (AORN) recommended practices for protective barrier materials.

49



Patient Care Services

Sterile Technique

Page 2 of 3

e.

f.

Sterile drapes shall be placed on the patient and on all furniture and equipment to be
included in the sterile field.

Sterile drapes shall be handled as little as possible.

During draping, the draping material shall be compact, held higher than the Operating
Room-{OR}bedsurface to be draped and draped from the operative/procedural site to
the periphery.

During draping, sterile gloves shall be protected by cuffing the draping material back over
the hand.

Once the sterile drape is placed in position, it shall not be moved.

ltems used within the sterile field shall be sterile.

a.

b.

C.

Packaging materials shall meet AORN recommended practices for selection and use of
packaging systems.

Methods of sterilization, storage and handling of sterile items shall meet AORN
recommended practices for disinfection, storage and handling.

All items presented to the sterile field shall be checked for expiration date, correct
size/style, proper packaging, processing, moisture, seal integrity, package integrity, and
appearance of sterilization indicator.

All items introduced onto the sterile field shall be opened, dispensed and transferred by methods
that maintain sterility and integrity.

a.

b.

c.
d.

Vendors/industry Representatives are not allowed to pass-open sterile implants,

instruments or supplies onto the sterile field.

When opening wrapped supplies, unscrubbed persons shall open the wrapper flap

farthest away from them first, then the side flaps, and the nearest fiap last.

Wrapper edges shall be secured when supplies are presented to the sterile field.

Sterile items shall be presented to the scrubbed person or placed securely on the sterile

field.

Sharp or heavy objects shall be presented to the scrubbed person or opened on a

separate surface, to avoid making a hole in the sterile barrier.

If organic material (eg blood, hair, tissue, bone) or other debris is found on an instrument

or item in a sterile set, the entire set is considered contaminated and personnel should

take corrective actions immediately, including, at a minimum, removing the entire set and

any other items that may have come into contact with the contaminated item from the

sterile field and changing gloves of any team members for may have touched the

contaminated items.

When dispensing solutions to the sterile field, the entire bottle contents shall be poured

into the receptacle and/or the remainder dlscarded

i. Solutions and medications shall be labeled on the sterile field per Patient
Care Services Procedure: Labeling Medication/Solutions On and Off a Sterile
Field.

i. Solution receptacles shall be placed near the edge of the table, or held by the
scrubbed person.

iii. Solutions shall be poured slowly to avoid splashing.

iv. Sterile transfer devices (i.e., sterile vial spike) shall be used when transferring
medications or solutions to the sterile field.

V. Stoppers shall not be removed from vials for the purpose of pouring medications
unless specifically designed for removing and pouring by the manufacturer.

vi. The edge of the container should be considered contaminated after the contents

have been poured.

All persons moving within or around a sterile field shall do so in a manner to maintain the integrity
of the sterile field.

a.
b.
c.

Scrubbed persons shall remain close to the sterile field and shall not leave the room.
Scrubbed persons shall keep arms and hands at or above the level of the sterile field.
Scrubbed persons shall avoid changing levels and shall be seated only when the entire
surgical procedure will be performed at this level.

50



Patient Care Services

Sterile Technique

Page 30f 3

| c.D.

| BF.

—h

Scrubbed persons shall change positions by moving face-to-face or back-to-back,
maintaining a safe distance between each other.

Scrubbed persons shall always face the sterile field.

Unscrubbed persons shall face sterile areas, maintaining an awareness of distance so as
to avoid contacts with sterile areas.

SURGERY/INVASIVE PROCEDURE AREAS

1.

All members of the surgical team shall demonstrate competence in understanding the basic
principles and practices of aseptic technique.

2. All personnel entering the Operating Room (OR) or invasive procedure room for any reason shall
wear clean scrub attire and head cover according to Patient Care Services Policy Surgical Attire.

3. Personnel shall perform hand hygiene before entering the OR or invasive procedure room where
sterile supplies have been opened.

4, Personnel shall wear a clean surgical mask that covers the mouth and nose and is secured in a
manner to prevent venting when open sterile supplies are present and when preparing,
performing, or assisting with surgery or invasive procedures.

5. Scrubbed persons shall wear sterile gowns and gloves.

a. Materials for gowns shall be selected according to recommended practices for protective
barrier materials.
b. Surgical hand scrubs/surgical hand asepsis shall be performed before donning sterile
gown and gloves.
C. The scrubbed person shall don sterile gown and sterile gloves from a sterile field away
from the main instrument table.
d. Sterile gowns shall be considered:
i. Sterile from the chest to the level of the sterile field on the front of the gown
ii. Sterile sleeves from two inches above the elbow to the cuff, circumferentially
iii. Unsterile at the neckline, shoulders, underarm, back and sleeve cuff
€. The scrubbed person shall inspect gloves for integrity after donning them.
i. The preferred method for changing contaminated gloves is for one member of the
sterile team to glove the other.
ii. The alternative method for changing contaminated gloves is by the open-glove
method.
f. Surgical gloves worn during invasive surgical procedures should be changed:
i. After each patient procedure
il. When suspected or actual contamination occurs
iii. After touching surgical helmet system hood or visor
iv. After adjusting optic eyepieces on the operative microscope
V. Immediately after direct contact with methyl methacrylate
vi. When gloves begin to swell, expand, and become loose on the hands as a result
of the material's absorption of fluids and fats
vii. When a visible defect or perforation is noted or when a suspected or actual
perforation from a needle, suture, bone, or other object occurs
viii. Every 90 to 150 minutes

6. Isolation technique should be used during bowel surgery and during procedures involving
resection of metastatic tumors.

RELATED DOCUMENTS:

1. Patient Care Services Procedure: Labeling Medication/Solutions On and Off a Sterile Field

#2. Patient Care Services Policy: Surgical Attire

REFERENCES:

1. AORN Guidelines for Perioperative Practice, 2015 Edition.

51



& .
(C‘)) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES
ISSUE DATE: NEW SUBJECT: Wound Classification During
Surgical Intervention
REVISION DATE(S):
Department Approval Date(s): 06/15
Clinical Policies and Procedures Approval Date(s): 07/15
Nurse Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 07/15
Operating Room Committee Approval Date(s): 01/16
Infection Control Committee Approval Date(s): 03/16
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 03/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. PURPOSE:

1.

To classify all wounds according to the likelihood and degree of wound contamination at the time
of surgical intervention.

B. SUPPORTIVE DATA:

1.

2.

3.

4.

4-5.

The American College of Surgeons’ definitions of Surgical Wound Infections (SWI) should be
used for routine surveillance because of their current widespread acceptance and reproducibility.
A wound can be considered infected if purulent material drains from it, even if a culture is
negative or not taken.

A positive culture does not necessarily indicate infection since many wounds, infected or not, are
colonized by bacteria.

Infected wounds may not yield pathogens by culture because the pathogens are fastidious,
culture techniques are inadequate, or the patient has been treated.

Wound classification shall be addressed at the end of the case as it may have changed
since the start of the case.

C. CLASSIFICATIONS:

1.

Clean Wound, Class |

a. Uninfected operative wounds in which no inflammation is encountered, and neither
respiratory, alimentary, genitourinary tracts, nor oropharyngeal cavity is entered.

b. Cases are elective, primarily closed, and if necessary, drained with closed drainage.

C. Operative incisional wounds that follow non-penetrating (blunt) trauma should be included

in this category if they meet the criteria.
Clean-Contaminated Wound, Class ||

a. Operative wounds in which the respiratory, alimentary, or genitourinary tract is entered
under controlled conditions and without unusual contamination.
b. Specifically, operations involving the biliary tract, appendix, vagina, and oropharynx are

included in this category, provided no evidence of infection or major break in sterile
technique is encountered.

C. All clean returns to surgery.

d. Any tube that involves a skin incision.

Contaminated Wounds, Class |l

a. Include open, fresh, accidental wounds, a chest tube, operations with major breaks in

sterile technique or gross spillage from the gastrointestinal tract, and incisions in which

52



Patient Care Services
Wound Classification During Surgical Intervention
Page 2 of 2

acute, non-purulent inflammation is encountered- Including necrotic tissue without
evidence of purulent drainage (ie: dry gangrene).
4, Dirty And Infected Wounds, Class lv
a. These include old traumatic wounds with retained devitalized tissue and those that involve
existing clinical infection or perforated viscera. This definition suggests that the organisms
causing postoperative infection were present in the operative field before the operation.

6-5. Not Applicable
a. When there is no wound, i.e. for such procedures as:
i. Closed reductions (where there is no break in the skin)
ii. Examination Under Anesthesia (EUA)
iii. Esophageal Dilatation

53



® Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

Administrative Policy Manual

ISSUE DATE: 9/07 SUBJECT: BUSINESS VISITOR VISITATION
REQUIREMENTS
REVISION DATE: 01/08; 07/11 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-203
Department Approval Date(s) 11/15
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 04/1201/16
i y : 0BLE
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 05/12
Board of Directors Approval: 05/12
A. PURPOSE:
1. To outline expectations for business visitors at Tri-City Health Care District (TCHD)

2.

To ensure all business visitors are pre-authorized to visit with appropriate identification;
understand all practices as they relate to contracts, products, loaner instrumentation,
new/borrowed equipment, dress code, conduct while in the hospital, and confidentiality in the
hospital setting.

DEFINITIONS:

1.

2.

Business visitors:_Any non-credentialed supplier, vendor, community liaison or clinical research
personnel

Suppliers: A person who provides sales or sales support of products or services to TCHD.
Examples of suppliers include but are not limited to representatives of equipment, supply, or
medical materials.

Vendors: A person who provides contracted services to departments or patients at TCHD.
Examples of vendors include but are not limited to dialysis services, registry-and-supplemental
staff-or equipment repair or installation technicians.

Community liaisons: Community Liaisons may include, but not be limited to providers of Home
Health, Hospice, Chaplains, and Skilled Nursing & Acute Rehabilitation Services who may
present to FGMGTCHD upon invitation from patient or family or Case Manager/Social Worker
staff for purposes of assessing patient for appropriate admission to their service.

POLICY:
1.

TCHD's selection of contractors and business visitors shall be made on the basis of objective
criteria including:

Group Purchasing OrganizationNational-contract affiliation

Quality

Technical excellence

Price

Delivery

Service

TCHD’s purchasing decisions shall be made based on the business visitor's ability to meet our
needs.

~0 a0 To

Prior to entering any patient care area, all business visitors must meet all established
requirements in Reptrax as determined by TCMGTCHD Leadership.
Business visitor visitation within the hospital shall be by appointment only.

All business visitors must sign in at the Reptrax kiosk in the main lobby.




Administrative Policy Manual — Leadership
Business Visitor Visitation Requirements — 8610-203
Page 2 of 4

a. Business visitors visiting the Surgical Services division are required to registercheck in at
the front desk of the Main Operating Room (OR) or the Sterile Processing Department
(SPD), and must always be identifiable by badge.

b. Business visitors denied access in Reptrax must report immediately to-PurchasingSupply
Chain Management- to receive a temporary badge before visiting any areas.

#6. Business visitors must wear the Reptrax printed badge or other appropriate TCHD vendor
identification and check in with the charge nurse prior to entering any clinical area.

8.7. Business visitors whose product competes with products covered by a sole or multiple source
contracts already in use at TCHD shall not be seen unless the hospital is in the process of re-
negotiating for these items and has requested representation.

9.8. Business visitors who are awarded national contracts with the hospital’s affiliated Group
Purchasing Organization may only discuss those products covered under the agreement.

a. These discussions shall only take place after the Supply Chain Management department
has completed the initial review and the business visitor has received authorization to
proceed.

40:9. No products shall be Ieft in hospltal departments without approval from Cllnlcal Values Analysis

Team.

44-10. TCHD employees and busmess V|S|tors are expected to employ the hlghest ethical standards in
business practices regarding source selection, negotiation, determination of contract awards, and
administration of all purchasing activities to foster public confidence in the integrity of the
procurement process.

a. Neither party shall disclose third party confidential information including contract pricing,
information to any outside party, or use of confidential information for actual or anticipated
personal gain without express consent by the other party or as required by law.

11. Any business visitor not complying with these rules shall be issued a verbal-warning in Reptrax.

If a second offense occurs, TCHD reserves the right to ban that particular business visitor

representative from doing business with TCHD.feraperiod-offive-years-

12. TCHD employees are prohibited from being vendors or suppliers of any product or service
at TCHD. ’

D. PRODUCT REMOVAL AND REPAIRS:
1. No TCHD owned equipment or instrumentation shall be removed from the Hospital unless
accompanied by authorized paperwork.
4+2. Noinstruments or trays (hospital or vendor owned), will be removed from SPD without
SPD staff's knowledge and consent.

E. PRODUCTS ANF REPLACEMENT PRODUCTS:

1. All products being brought into the hospital for review/evaluation must be 501K/FDA approved
and at no cost to TCHD. All products for review, replacement, and/or evaluation must be
submitted through the Supply Chain Management Department or Supply Chain Director in
advance.

2. No in-service or product demonstration shall occur without the prior knowledge of the Unit

| Manager ander Supply Chain Management.
a. Under no circumstances are products used on patients without in-service/education for

Medical Staff and Health Care providers prior to use of the product/equipment.

| F. DRESS CODE:
1. All business visitors conducting business must dress according to unit policy.
| i. If the business visitor representative is required to wear scrubs:, Hhis/her

temporary identification badge shall be clearly visible on the front left pocket of the
scrub shirt.

ii. Scrub tops shall be tucked in at all times.
| il. All FEMCGTCHD owned surgical scrubs must be returned before leaving the
hospital.

55



Administrative Policy Manual — Leadership
Business Visitor Visitation Requirements — 8610-203

Page 3 of 4
2. Hair covers must be worn properly. All head and facial hair, including sideburns and
necklines shall be covered (all hair enclosed), and masks must be worn whenever entering an
area where sterile supplies are open.
3. No open toed shoes are allowed.
| G. PRICING:
1. All business visitors must submit pricing to Supply Chain Management Director and receive

| approval prior to bringing the product to FEGMETCHD regardless of who requested the product to
be brought in.

2. Product brought in without TCHD Supply Chain Director previously agreeingd upon pricing te
FCMCTCHD-Supply-Chain-Direster will be considered a “donation” to FGMGTCHD and will not
be paid for.

3. All business visitors and vendors with an on-going relationship with TCHDMG must have a
current and approved pricing agreement oncontraction file.

a. List pricing is netever acceptedabie-
| H. LOANER INSTRUMENTS:

1. All loaner trays must be delivered to SPD no less than 24 hours prior to the procedure start time
to allow for proper inventory and sterilization.

a. All loaner trays shall include up-to-date count sheets listing all contents.
b. All loaner trays must be labeled accurately with the name of the tray, physician intending

to use the tray, and date and time of procedure.
C. Trays must be checked in and picked up at SPD.

i. When picking up loaner instrumentation, business visitors shall visually inspect all
items and request additional cleaning if items do not meet cleanliness standards.

ii. Missing instruments must be identified at the time of pick-up and verified with a
sterile processing technician.

iii. No replacements shall be made for instrument loss identified after the loaner
instruments have left SPD.

iv. Loaner instruments and trays must be picked up within 24 hours after the use.
V. FCMCTCHD is notlenger responsible for any loaner trays and instruments left
over that-24 hours-period-

| 1. CONDUCT IN SURGICAL SERVICES AREAS:
1. A distance of three feet shall be maintained from all sterile fields. Laser pointers may be used to
identify items on the sterile field

2. Business visitors NEVER scrub in or assist in the surgical procedure.

3. Business visitors are not to open any sterile supplies onto a sterile field.

4, Business visitors shall not operate autoclaves or assist with any patient care.

5. All pagers and mobile phones must be placed on vibrate while in the operating suites.

6. At no time shall a business visitor operate a surgical suite phone, copier or fax machine.

7. Business visitor representatives may not operate any patient care equipment except under the
following circumstances:
a. Contracted service with TCHD (i.e., laser, lithotripter)
b. Demonstrated evidence of specialized training (i.e., pacemaker, AICD) shall be allowed to

adjust devices to surgeon specifications.
8. Business visitor representatives may not market products in the OR department to include

physician lounges and surgical suitessurgical-suites. Only pre-approved products may be
demonstrated. All physician sales calls must be arranged through the physician's office.

9. FGMCTCHD will not pay for any product opened by a business visitor or vendor during surgical
procedures. Only TCMCTCHD staff will open product.

10. Business visitors and vendors must remain present during surgical procedures to support use of
their product.

11. Once the patient has entered the OR, the business visitor representative is not allowed in the OR
until surgical drapes are applied and the procedure is ready to commence. The business visitor is

56



Administrative Policy Manual — Leadership
Business Visitor Visitation Requirements — 8610-203
Page 4 of 4

allowed in the OR ONLY for the portion of the procedures related to use of the business visitor's
product. Business visitor representatives shall limit-to-a-minimumminimize the number of times
they enter/exit an operating suite once a procedure has started. to-a-minimum-

a. Only one business visitor shall be permitted in the OR, Catheterization Lab, and/or
Interventional Radiology Room during a procedure unless authorized by the department
Ddirector or designee.

b. Business visitor names/information is recorded on the intraoperative record.

TRIAL EQUIPMENT:

1. All non-TCHD owned equipment for trial must be pre-approved by Supply Chain Management
and Clinical Engineering prior to the day of use.

2. All equipment must be safety checked by the Clinical Engineering department prior to being
brought into clinical areas.

3. Any consumable supplies required for use during the trial of equipment must be FDA approved
and at “no cost” to TCHD.

4. The business visitor/vendor must obtain a “no cost” purchase order from Purchasing before the

product can be left for trial and complete a vendor trial agreement form.

CONFIDENTIALITY:

1. All business visitors with access to patlent health information must read and follow all TCHD
policiesFC-health-care-districtsand, sign a confidentiality agreement and submit to TCHDMGC
contracting-legal for file.

2. Access to specific health data and information shall be limited to the medical record number.
3. Discussion of patient medical information must be limited to work or patient care related
discussions and must take place in a private area.
a. Discussions in public areas (i.e., elevators, restrooms, lounges, and cafeteria) are strictly
prohibited.

Business visitor representatives shall only enter an operating suite after the patient is under the
effect of anesthesia and draped for surgery.
Business visitor representatives shall not be granted access to the surgical schedule.
Photographs are prohibited.
PHI will only be possessed and transported by TCHD staff only.

8. Patients should be informed and provide consent of the possibility of business visitors

being present during their procedure to support the equipment and/or products used
during the case.

PNo o

COURTESIES:

1. TCHD employees may not accept gifts, entertainment, or anything else of value from current or
potential business visitors of goods and services or from consultants to the organization except
for items that are clearly promotional in nature, mass produced, or nominal in value.

a. Perishable or consumable gifts may be accepted from business visitors currently providing
supplies or services.

2. Cash or cash equivalents such as gift cardsertificates shall not be given to staff.

a. Business meals and/or nominally valued sporting tickets are permissible by business
visitors currently providing supplies or services. (Refer to Administrative Policy,
Acceptance-of-Gifts-or-Gratuities Conflict of Interest Acceptance of Gifts)

3. Items presented to TCHD employees/staff shall not be intended to evoke any form of
reciprocation.

REFERENCES:

1. Administrative Policy #483 Conflict of Interest Acceptance of Gifts

o7



(C\)) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

ENGINEERING
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE

SUBJECT: Breached Medical Gas Lines

ISSUE DATE: 11/87

REVIEW DATE(S):

REVISION DATE(S): 9/94, 1/97, 5/00, 5/03, 6/06, 6/09, 8/11, 6/12
Department Approval Date(s): 03/16
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 03/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A PURPOSE.

1.

2.
3

Any medical gas lines that are repaired, added or replaced shall be tested for purity and
contamination before being allowed for patient usage.
This policy includes oxygen, nitrous oxide and medical air.
All documentation of testing will be retained in the Engineering Department-ard-a-cepy-io
Aelministrsden Sesonynilbales : SRR i

(it o i
All testing will be scheduled by Projects Department and performed by a Certified Medical
Gas Testing Company.

58



(C‘)) Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

ENGINEERING
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE

Subicet: Outside.C Hazard C "

| SUBJECT: Ouiside-Contractors- Hazard Communications Program
ISSUE DATE: 9/94
REVIEW DATE(S):
REVISION DATE(S): 1/97, 5/00, 5/03, 6/06, 6/09, 8/11, 6/12
Department Approval Date(s): 03/16
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 03/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. POLICY:

1.

It is the responsibility of the contracting engineer to provide on-site contractors with the following

information:

a. Hazardous chemicals to which they may be exposed while on the job site.

b. Precautions the contractor and his/her employees may take to lessen the possibility of
exposure by usage of appropriate protective measures.

It is the responsibility of the contracting engineer to contact each contractor before work is

started to gather and disseminate information concerning hazards which the contractor will bring

into the workplace.

Compliance with the OSHA Hazard Communications Standard is certified by:

Name, Title

Date

59



@‘)) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

ENGINEERING
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE

TRI-CIFY-MEDICAL-CENTER
Enei inoPoliev-& P i 3 g 5
Poliey-Number: 1008—————— Page 1 of 2
| SUBJECT: Ouiside-Contractors Working in the Facility
ISSUE DATE: 9/94
REVIEW DATE(S):
REVISION DATE(S): 1/97, 5/00, 5/03, 10/05, 6/09, 8/11, 6/12
Department Approval Date(s): 03/16
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 03/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. POLICY:

1.

All sutside-contractors will coordinate all work within Tri-City Medical-CenterHealthcare District
Facilities with the Engineering before beginning work.

B. PROCEDURE:

1.

10.
11.
12.

Before beginning work, all eutside-contractors shall check in at the Engineering office to obtain
ID badges. The outside contractor will supply the following information: -scope of work,
authorization, duration and any pertinent information that is required.

All contractors who need to be in the hospital for more than fours hours are required to view the
safety-tapesinfection control video and take hospital orientation.-thetest

All contractors shall follow the hospital infection control policy.

All contractors shall work as professionally as possible so as not to aggravate patients, staff and
visitors.

All contractors shall follow the hospital smoking policy.

If special parking is required, permission shall be granted and coordinated through Engineering.
All contractors are to maintain their work area as clean as possible while working and clean up
thoroughly when finished.

If any utilities or critical systems are to be interrupted, notification of Engineering personnel is
mandatory. Engineering personnel will in turn assist.

All contractors are asked to use competent subcontractors on hospital projects. Poor work
practice will not be tolerated.

All contractors are expected to use courtesy. Loud and abusive language will not be tolerated.
Contractors must provide assurance not to block corridors and fire exits.

Any life safety code violations incurred during construction or renovation will result in close

60



Engineering Manual — General Administration
Outside Contractors Working in the Facility

Page 2 of 2

13.
14,

44-15.
45:16.

coordination with Engineering’s interim life safety measures. Fhese-measures-are-required-by
Mo A

All contractors working above the ceiling are required to replace all disturbed ceiling tile.

Any work involving penetration of firewalls needs to obtain Fire Wall Penetration Permit from
Engineering Department. All penetrations in fire/smoke partitions are to be sealed with fire caulk
and inspected by Engineering staff before final payment is made.

Any hot work requires a Hot Work Permit that can be obtained at Engineering.

Upon completion of daily activities contractors are asked to check out and report progress to
Engineering.

61



@‘9 Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

ENGINEERING
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE

SUBJECT:

ISSUE DATE:

Daily Journal

11/87

REVIEW DATE(S):
REVISION DATE(S): 10/94, 1/97, 5/00, 5/03, 6/06, 6/09, 8/11, 6/12

Department Approval Date(s): 03/16
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 03/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. PURPOSE:

1.

The purpose of this instruction is to develop and execute a standard procedure to record and
maintain a permanent record of significant occurrences within Engineering Department. The
journal will be kept in the Pplant eOperations division of Engineering.

B. PROCEDURE:

1.
2.

The journal contains a log sheet for each day of the year.
The fo||owmg procedures and mformatlon will be |nc|uded in the journal

b-a. All equ:pmentMajer—maehmeP,t mepe#amle—éue—te-fallure estlmate of tlme for completion
of repairs and when the-majer piece of equipmentmachinery has been repaired-erthe
meinionarnecsermsiaiod

cb. Major maehmew—eqmpment in operatlon or shifted.

e-c. Entryofthe-status-of Tiests ander inspections.;satisfactorr-orunsatisfactory{State
seeser-lar-uRsetsiostontost els

£d. Report of injury and cause to personnel in the Engineering.

3-e. Safety hazards shallbe-entered-in-thejournaland the appropriate corrective action

taken.

4f.  Recerdinjournal-majorService calls or inspections by contract insurance company
ander etherregulatory agencies that are visiting the hospital.

Journal will start with the beginning of each shift.

All department personnel will coordinate with "duty engineer” the entries of significance that

62



Engineering Manual — General Administrative
| outside-Contractors Working-in-the-Fasility- Daily Journal

Page 2 of 2

5.

8-6.

should be recorded in the journal at the end of the working shift.

Entries shall be made in ink - no erasures. If a change is to be made, draw a line through the
item and put your initials beside it.

The Joumal W|II be revnewed by Engmeenng—Manager—Facmtles Manager O ere-regtiarbasis
vehis/her designee on
a regular bas1s to insure aII 5|gn|f|cant problems safety hazards or recommendations
have been properly resolved.

63



‘c‘)) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

ENGINEERING
OPERATIONS

| SUBJECT: Domestic Hot Water Temperature

ISSUE DATE: 11/87

REVIEW DATE(S):

REVISION DATE(S): 9/94, 1/97, 5/00, 5/03, 6/06, 6/09, 8/11, 6/12
Department Approval Date(s): 03/16
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 03/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A PURPOSE:

| 1. To define the acceptable range in temperature of domestic hot water through-out the facility.
B. POLICY:
| 1. The temperature of hot water -used-by-patients-(domestic hot water) in this facility shall be
maintained between 105 and 120 degrees Fahrenheit.
2. Any taps delivering water at a temperature exceeding 125 degrees Fahrenheit will be

prominently marked.

C. PROCEDURE:
1. The temperature of domesttc hot water is tested as—part—ef—the—mmer—meetqameahnetruetren

on

regular baS|s by the Plant Operators
2. Culturing-for-Llegionella testing is scheduled by the FaC|I|t|es Manager or his/her de5|gnee
on as needed basis and performedperfermed

water-distribution-system-may-be-carrying-such-bacteriaby a qualified Contractor.

64



@‘9 Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

ENGINEERING
OPERATIONS

SUBJECT: Emergency Generator Test Loads

ISSUE DATE: 11/94

REVIEW DATE(S):

REVISION DATE(S): 1/97, 5/00, 5/03, 6/06, 6/09, 8/11, 6/12

Department Approval Date(s): 03/16
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 03/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. POLICY:

1. Required test loads for the emergency generators have been calculated by the following method
as set forth by NFPA 110.

2. All transfer switches are identified as to which generator with they were associated.

3. Each transfer switch actual load was recorded on each phase for 72 hours while being supplied
by SDG&E. Recordings were made in amps.

4, Recorded actual loads were then totaled for each phase per generator.

5. Required test load is 30% of name plate rating in amps.

#1 GENERATOR NAME PLATE DATA: 400KW 500KVA 1384A

PHASE
ACTUAL LOAD: A B C Average
685.5 672.3 600.6AMPS 652.8A

Required load = 30% of name plate amps = 415 amps
#2 GENERATOR NAME PLATE DATA: 400KW 500KVA 1388A

PHASE
ACTUAL LOAD: A B C Average
331.1 300.0 504.2AMPS 378.4A

Required load = 30% of name plate amps = 417 amps

65



Engineering Manual - Operations
Emergency Generator Test Loads

Page 2 of 2

] 234.4 | 189.8 | 206.0AMPS | 210A
Required load = 30% of name plate amps = 625 amps
#4 GENERATOR NAME PLATE DATA: 1000KW 1250KVA 1503A
PHASE
ACTUAL LOAD: A B C Average
312.1 327.3 302.2AMPS 313.8A

Required load = 30% of name plate amps = 451 amps

CENTRAL PLANT GENERATOR NAME PLATE DATA: 800KW 1000KVA 1203A

PHASE
ACTUAL LOAD: A B C Average
411 46.2 41.6AMPS 42.9A

Required load = 30% of name plate amps = 361 amps

66



(C‘)) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

ENGINEERING
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE

Subicet: G Lp L Polici
EnsineeringsPolicv-& P i

SUBJECT: General Personnel Policies

ISSUE DATE:

REVIEW DATE(S):

11/87

REVISION DATE(S): 9/94, 1/97, 5/00, 5/03, 6/06, 2/09, 8/11, 6/12

Department Approval Date(s): 03/16
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 03/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A PURPOSE:

1. To define personnel policies relating to the Engineering Department:
B. POLICY:
1. Selection of Employees:

a. All department employees are selected on the basis of their qualification to fulfill
established specifications for the job. General criteria include experience, mental
capacity, physical ability, and willingness to work in the specific environment.

b. No person is discriminated against in employment, placement, or promotion because of
race, religion, citizenship, national origin, marital status, liability for service in the Armed
Forces, or age.

c. Per policies and procedures, the Director of Facilities will make Onse-the decision
is-made-to hire an individual based on available budget and personnel needs and
will submit for approval to Admmlstratlon Once approved Human Resources will
present an offer to .
addltlon a phys1ca| examlnatlon is conducted as part of the screemng

d. Employees will be terminated for making false statements on the application or for

a.

concealing information on the medical history.
2. Probationary Period:

All employees of this department are employed for a probationary period of 90 days. In
this period, the employee has an opportunity to accustom him or herself to the job, and
the supervisor has an opportunity to see how well the employee has fitted to the job. At
anytime during this period, the Ssupervisor may determine —that-the-employee to be
unsatisfactory for the job; this would necessitate termination before completion of the 90-
day probationary period. At the end of the third month of the probationary period, the

67



Engineering Manual — General Administrative
General Personnel Policies

Page 2 of 3

Ssupervisor will review the employee’s work performance and forward a written
evaluation to the Director of the Department. This provides an opportunity for the
employee to express his/hers views and to learn of ways in which the employee can
improve their performance. After the probationary period, employees begins to acquire
seniority in the Ddepartment from the date of their employment. After an employee has
served his/hers probationary period, he/she will be entitled to all benefits of a regular full-
time employee, such as sick leave, vacations, etc.

b. An employee may also be placed on probationary status if he/she has committed a
violation of organizational rules or regulations for which he/she could be discharged.

Hours of Work:

a. Employees will be expected to work evenings, nights, holidays, and weekends as
needed.

b. It is expected that employees work additional hours or days as required by absenteeism,
etc., but only with the consent of the immediate supervisor.

c. The determination of the daily and weekly work schedule is left to the different

department Ssupervisors. It is expected that all employees will follow the schedule as
set forth by their immediate Ssupervisor. If the employee has any questions concerning
the schedule or a problem that the Ssupervisor cannot handle, feel free to contact the
Director / Manager of the Department.

Starting Time:

a. Your starting time means just that, starting time. It means that you are ready to work.

Overtime:

a. All personnel are expected to work overtime, as needed, to provide necessary service.

b. All overtime must have prior approval of your immediate Ssupervisor. On the PM Shift,
the cost center Ssupervisor or duty Eengineer on-call will approve.

Record of Warning:

a. An employee may receive a warning for inefficiency, improper conduct or violation of
organizational or departmental policies. Such a warning will be written in triplicate by the
Ssupervisor, countersigned by the employee and placed in his/her personnel file. One
copy will go to Human Resources, one in the employee’s department file and one to the
employee.

b. Written warnings are issued to insure important correction of employee performance and
attitude. A total of three warnings; verbal, counseling session and written warning may
mean immediate dismissal. Warnings may be issued for any of the following:

i. Incompetence

ii. Inefficiency

iii. Discourtesy

iv. Disregard of established organization and department procedures
V. Disregard of personal appearance, uniforms, dress, and hygiene
vi. Frequent tardiness or absenteeism

vii. Violation of organization or department safety rules.

Smoking:

a. Hospital policy does not allow smoking within-the-hespitalanywhere on campus.
Department Head, Manager and Supervisor Responsibilities:

a. Each department has a BepartmentHead--ManagerSupervisor that is responsible for
I-H—tHFH—WPFMH—Seme—depathents—the—werl(—there%—ﬂm-her

the work of that department ;

The Ssuperwsor will see that the employee is
acquainted with their fellow employees, with the duties of their job and with other matters
connected with the job. He/she is available to answer your questions, to offer guidance
and direction, to discuss opportunities for advancement, and to inform the employee
about their progress in their work.

Performance Evaluation:
a. Superwsor will be requ:red to evaluate the employees work performance at the end of

year However the Ssuperwsor may deC|de to evaluate the employee at anytlme These
evaluations were designed to help the employee understand what is expected of them,

68



Engineering Manual — General Administrative

General Personnel Policies

Page 3 of 3

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

and how the employee can improve their job performance. Each evaluation will be
explained to the employee, and the employee will be asked to sign the evaluation form.

Rest Breaks:

a.

b.

Employees are allowed two 15-minute work breaks within each working period. The
breaks are not to be taken other than in designated areas at the designated times.

All personnel working an eight-hour shift are allowed a 30-minute meal break included in
their work shift. All personnel working six hours or more, but less than eight hours, must
take a 30-minute meal break.

Reporting an Absence:

a. Daily attendance is vitally important in order for the department to provide complete and
efficient service. Excessive absenteeism, for any reason, places a severe hardship on
coworkers and Ssupervisor whenever a replacement must be called in to perform duties.

b. If it is necessary that the employee be absent from their duties, call the Supervisor

two hours prior to your shift.
absense. The employee must continue to report therr absence each day if their return
date is undetermlned S

C. Unreported absences may result in automat|c termlnatlon ef—the—empteyees
arsleyvement:

Tardiness:

a. If for some reason the employee will be late for work, they should notify their supervisor

a.

that they will be late and what time they expect to arrive. Excessive tardiness could
result in termination. Tardiness is defined as anytime later than 7 minutes of the
employees defined start time.

Personal Phone Calls:

Personal phone calls are to be made on the employee’s breaks.-and-using-the-public
pay-phones. Excessivepersonalphone-callscanresult-indisciplinanrastion:

Scheduled Time Off (Vacation, Holidays, Excused Time Off, etc.):

Due to the necessity of providing coverage for patient care 24 hours/day, seven
days/week, it is necessary to set guidelines for submission of Paid Time Off (PTO)
requests. These are guidelines only and special circumstances will be handled on an
|nd|wdual basus as they arise:

a.

ferfertee\ Your preference for vacatlon tlme wnII be granted whenever possmle if |t does
not conflict with the functioning of the department or cause disruption of service. Submit
PTO requests must be submitted at least 2 weeks prior to the requested time off

unless an emergency exnsts by—th€—15t-h—ef—t-he—menth—pner—te—yeu-|LFequst—Req-uests

requests are contmgent on the ab|I|ty ef—the—seheduter—to arrange appropnate coverage.

69



(C‘)) Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

ENGINEERING
OPERATIONS

Subieet: ‘ conTestine And Mai g

SUBJECT: Inspection Testing and Maintenance of Fire Alarm Detection and Automatic Extinguishing

System
ISSUE DATE: 5/91
REVIEW DATE(S):
REVISION DATE(S): 9/94, 1/97, 5/00, 5/03, 6/06, 6/09, 8/11, 6/12
Department Approval Date(s): 03/16
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 03/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. PURPOSE.:

1. To describe the process by which the Fire Alarm ;-Detection and Automatic Extinguishing
System will be inspected, tested and maintained.

B. GENERAL INFORMATION:
1. Computerized Maintenance Management System (CMMS) - A computerized information system

to be used to facilitate the scheduling, maintenance and documentation of equipment testing
and inspection.

C. PROCEDURE:
1. A qualified service company is contracted to inspect and test the Fire Alarm ~Detection and
Automatic Extinguishing Systems to ensure compliance with Authorities Having Jurisdiction

(AHJ)eragquarerly-basis. Inspections and tests are conducted in compliance with NFPA
regulations.

2. Maintenance of these systems is performed by -EngineeringPlant Engineers and/or qualified
service company, as necessary, in compliance with NFPA regulations.

70



2
(C‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

ENGINEERING
OPERATIONS

SUBJECT: Maintenance and Inspection Electrical Distribution System and Emergency Generator

ISSUE DATE: 11/87

REVIEW DATE(S):

REVISION DATE(S): 9/94, 1/97, 5/00, 5/03, 6/06, 6/09, 8/11, 6/12
Department Approval Date(s): 03/16
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 03/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. PURPOSE:
1. To describe the process by which the electrical distribution system is maintained and
inspected.

B. GENERAL INFORMATION:
1. Computerized Maintenance Management System (CMMS) - A computerized information
system used to facilitate the scheduling, monitoring, and documentation of equipment and
environmental maintenance.

C. PROCEDURE:

1. A-Bbuilding Eengineers checks electrical receptacles in accordance with a scheduled work
order produced foreash-envirenmental-unit-by the CMMS and indicating the established time
frame and maintenance instructions-setforthe-maintenance-of-that-envirormental-unit.

2. Work orders for other components of the electrical distribution system, are produced on apre-
determined-and pre-programmed scheduled by CMMS.

3. Each work order is assigned by the Engineering-SupervisorFacilities Manager or his/her
designee to a qualified Eengineer.

4, The Eengineer performs preventive maintenance (and corrective maintenance if needed),
inspects the system, and conducts testing: as specified in the CMMS instruction set printed
on the work order.

n



Engineering Manual - Operations
Maintenance and Inspection Electrical Distribution System and Emergency Generator

Page 2 of 2

The Eengineer prepares and submits to the Engineering Department a work order for any
repair work which will take more than thirty minutes to complete or for which he does not have
tools or parts readily available.

The Eengineer completes the Preventative Maintenance Work Order, indicating specific
preventive or corrective actions he has taken and noting the date the scheduled maintenance
was complete. This information to be enterede-werk-erderis-submitted-to-the-Engineering
Administrative Coordinatorforentry in the CMMS.

The Plant Operations Eengineer inspects the generatorset-{and-batteries)
monthlygenerators monthly and tests themit under actual load and operating temperature
conditions for at least 30 minutes. The tests are documented and the Supervisor reviews
these tests results -weekly-to be certain the generatorsrset areis performing in a reliable
manner.

72



@‘9 Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

ENGINEERING
OPERATIONS

Subicet: Mai And .

SUBJECT: Maintenance and Inspection Medical/Surgical Air and Vacuum System

ISSUE DATE: 11/87

REVIEW DATE(S):

REVISION DATE(S): 9/94, 1/97, 5/00, 5/03, 6/06, 6/09, 8/11, 6/12
Department Approval Date(s): 03/16
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 03/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A PURPOSE:

1.

To describe the process by which the medical/surgical and vacuum system is maintained and
inspected.

B. GENERAL INFORMATION:

1.

Computerized Maintenance Management System (CMMS): A computerized information system
used to facilitate the scheduling monitoring and documentation of equipment and environmental
maintenance.

C. PROCEDURE:

1.

A work order for preventive maintenance, and /or inspection testing of each component of the

medical/surgical air and vacuum system is produced on a pre-determined-and-pre-programmed
schedule by the CMMS.

The work is assigned by the Facilities Manager or his/her designee Engineering-Superviserto
an Eengineer to complete.

The Eengineer performs preventive maintenance (and corrective maintenance if needed),
inspects the system and conducts testing as specified in the CMMS instruction set printed on the
work order.

The Eengineer prepares and submits to the Engineering Department a work order for any repair
work which will take more than thirty minutes to complete or for which he does not have tools or
parts readily available.

The Eengineer completes the Preventative Maintenance Work Order, indicating specific

73



Engineering Manual - Operations
Maintenance and Inspection Medical/Surgical Air and Vacuum System
Page 2 of 2

preventive or corrective actions he has taken and notmg the date the scheduled malntenance
was completed. : ' ;
theThis mformatlon is entered mto CMMS

6. Respiratory Therapy Department personnel checks system flow rates before each procedure

and reports malfunctions to the Engineering Depariment.

An outside-qualified vendor is contracted annually to perform an inspection of all master

signals, area alarms, automatic pressure switches, shut off valves, flexible connections,

outlets and purity from source in accordance with NFPA and-Jeint Commission

etandaFdsto ensure compllance with Authorltles Havmg Jurlsdlctlon (AHJs)

74



‘C‘? Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

ENGINEERING
OPERATIONS

Subicet: Mai \rdd :

SUBJECT: Maintenance and Inspection Boiler/Steam System

ISSUE DATE: 11/87

REVIEW DATE(S):

REVISION DATE(S): 9/94, 1/97, 5/00, 5/03, 6/06, 6/09, 8/11, 6/12
Department Approval Date(s): 03/16
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 03/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

S = ina-Mai M |
B-A. PURPOSE:
1. To describe the process by which the boiler/steam system is maintained and inspected.

| c-B. GENERAL INFORMATION:

1.

Computerized Maintenance Management System (CMMS) - A computerized information system
used to facilitate the scheduling monitoring and documentation of equipment and environmental
maintenance.

| B-.C. PROCEDURE:;

1.

A work order for preventive maintenance, inspection, and/or testing of each component part to
the boiler/steam system is produced at pre-determined-and-pre-programmed schedule by the
CMMS.

The work is assigned by the Engineering-SupervisorFacilities Manager and/or his designee to
an Eengineer or a Qualified Contractor.

The Eengineer or a Qualified Contractor performs preventive maintenance (and corrective
maintenance, if needed), inspects the system and conducts testing as specified in the CMMS
instruction set printed on the work order.

The Eengineer prepares and submits to the Engineering Department a Corrective Maintenance
form for any repair work which will take more than thirty minutes to complete or for which he/she
does not have tools or parts readily available.

The Eengineer or Qualified Contractor completes the Scheduled Maintenance Work Order,

75



Engineering Manual - Operations
Maintenance and Inspection Boiler/Steam System

Page 2 of 2
indicates specific preventive or corrective actions he-has-taken and notesing the date the
scheduled malntenance was completed ThIS mformatlon to be entered into —and-submiis-the
. y-in-the CMMS.
6. The englneer checks the alternative fuel supply da|ly and replenlshes it when at 12,500 galions

to maintain at least a 72 hour supply.

76



2
@‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

ENGINEERING
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE

SUBJECT: Maintenance Work Request System

ISSUE DATE: 11/87

REVIEW DATE(S):

REVISION DATE(S): 10/94, 1/97, 5/00, 5/03, 6/06, 6/09, 8/11, 6/12
Department Approval Date(s): 03/16
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 03/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. PURPOSE:
1. To establish an effective means of requesting, coordinating and completing maintenance efa
corrective-naturework orders.

B. PROCEDURE:
1. Corrective maintenance can be defined as those actions required to restore equipment,
buﬂdmgs and grounds to normal condmon and to operate as designed. The following precedures
isprocedures are established
to initiate and carry out an effectlve program and are conS|dered-a normal means for
obtaining maintenance action.

2. The Maintenance Work Request System will be divided by theEngineering-Manager Building
Maintenance Supervisor or his/her designee into three major categories which are defined as
follows:

a. URGENT: These are corrective actions of such a nature that the failure to take

immediate action or actions will jeopardize the eperation-ofthe-hospital-with-respestio
itsprimary-missionand-servicesafety of patients, visitors and staff. Proseduresfor
LIRC = soresive-actionds sy torihe tastesiresrne

b. ROUTINE: These are corrective actions which should be performed at the first
opportunity, but their nature is such that the primary function of the hospital is not
significantly affected. Work ordersrequests will be picked up on a daily basis by

Engineering personnel.-during-theirrermal-rounds.
cC. DEFERRED Some routine reques%s—work orders may be deferred based on prlonty

4.3. For the Maintenance Work Request System to operate efficiently, it is mandatory that the

7



Engineering Manual — General Administrative
Maintenance Work Request System
Page 2 of 2

telephone and paging for Engineering be used only in cases of urgent requirements or

emergencies (safety, flood, fire, power loss, etc.)..-since-it-is-impossible-to-assignproeritiesand
sebedule phonasalls apd paces

54. On a daily basis, the Erngineering-Building Maintenance Supervisor or his/her designee will
assign wWork ordersRegquests to personnel and review completed work orders for
completeness and correctness of repairs and/or the need for purchases or outside assistance.

78



@‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

ENGINEERING
INFECTION CONTROL

SUBJECT: Managing Biological Agents to Prevent Waterborne iliness

ISSUE DATE: New

REVIEW DATE(S):

REVISION DATE(S):

Department Approval Date(s): 08/15
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 10/15
Infection Control Committee Approval Date(s): 03/16
Medical Executive Committee Approval Dates(s): n/a

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A POLICY:
1. It is the policy of Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) Engineering Department to maintain, treat
and test open water and potable water systems to minimize pathogenic biological agents.

B. PURPOSE:

1. Equipment that operates with water that can be aerosolized (e. g., cooling towers, faucets,
showers, fountains, pools, spas) may become contaminated with potentially infectious biological
agents even though the equipment is operated within the manufacturer’s guidelines. Regular
maintenance and cleaning of the equipment and proper treatment of the water will be performed
to ensure that the risks of hazards are minimized to the staff, patients and visitors of TCHD.

2. Treatment & General Cleaning
a. Cooling towers, water display fountains, spas, pools, and other open water systems that

can generate aerosols shall have a maintenance program that includes routine cleaning
of the water reservoir and piping systems. The maintenance shall be conducted in
accordance with the manufacturer’'s recommendations and appropriate cleaning
instructions. When necessary, make up water should be provided from the normal water
service system. Open-water systems that have been out of service for an extended
period of time shall be thoroughly cleaned before being returned to service.

b. Systems that generate or utilize aerosolized potable tap water (showers, drinking
fountains, ice machines, tap water faucets) shall be properly cleaned and maintained to
control the contamination from potentially infectious biological agents if out of service for
a period of time. Water storage tanks (hot water systems, reserve storage tanks) that are
not continually utilized should be routinely cleaned and decontaminated.

c. During maintenance and cleaning procedures, the appropriate personnel protection
equipment (PPE) shall be worn to prevent exposure to potentially infectious biological
agents, such as Legionella, Mycobacterium, and Pseudomonas.

3. Treatment
a. The water treatment program should include the routine application of the appropriate

biocide treatment agents designed to eliminate and control biological agents and other
contaminates that can accumulate from exposure to the open atmosphere. During the
application of treatment and cleaning agents, the appropriate PPE shall be worn.

4, Documentation

79



Engineering Manual — Infection Control
Managing Biologica! Agents to Prevent Waterborne lliness

Page 2 of 2

a.

Routine maintenance and treatment procedures of open water and potable water
systems shall be recorded. Date of service, service and treatment activity, and personnel
conducting the service shall be recorded. Maintenance and cleaning of open water and
potable water systems that have been out of service for an extended period of time shall
also be documented.

Preventative Maintenance

a. In frequencies determined by Director of Engineering or his/her designee a qualified
testing agency will be scheduled to perform testing and validation reports to determine
the effectiveness of the Water Safety Management Plan.

b. lce Machines and Cooling Towers are to be maintained per Manufacturer’s
Recommendations or Alternative Equipment Maintenance program.

C. Decorative fountains to be placed on a chemical treatment program or put out of
service.

d. Cooling Towers to be on a continuous chemical treatment program.

e. Hot Water Tanks and Storage Tanks to be blowdown in frequencies determined by
Director of Engineering or his/her designee.

f. Disinfect Hot Water Storage Tanks and Cooling Towers in frequencies determined by
the Director of Engineering or his/her designee.

g. Disinfect high risk Air Handling Unit Coils and Drain Pans in frequencies determined by
the Director of Engineering or his/her designee.

h. In frequencies determined by Director of Engineering or his/her designee flush taps in
vacant/low use areas.

i. In frequencies determined by Director of Engineering or his/her designees flush
emergency eyewash and shower stations.

Staff Training

a. Staff members responsible for the water treatment program will be trained regarding

proper cleaning and maintenance procedures, and the safe handling and proper
application of water treatment and cleaning chemicals. All guidelines for handling
hazardous materials and the recommendations for proper use of PPE will be presented.

80



(Q) Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

ENGINEERING
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE

SUBJECT: Preventive Maintenance

ISSUE DATE: 11/87

REVIEW DATE(S):

REVISION DATE(S): 9/94, 1/97, 5/00, 5/03, 6/06, 2/09, 8/11, 6/12
Department Approval Date(s): 03/16
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 03/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. PURPOSE.

1. To describe the process by which preventative maintenance (PM) work within defined
environmental-units-Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) facilities is assigned, performed and
documented.

B. GENERAL INFORMATION

21. Preventative Maintenance (PM): Those regularly scheduled activities performed to ensure that
each environmentalunitfacility, and the individual items classified as part of it, are maintained in
a safe, functional and aesthetically acceptable condition. -See Attachment 12 for items generally
maintained as part of an environmental unit.

3-2. Computerized Maintenance Management System (CMMS): - A computerized Information system
used to facilitate the scheduling, monitoring, documentation and instructions on performing
PMspreventative-maintenansce of equipment and environmental maintenance.

C. POLICY:
1. TCHDThe-hespital will maintain its physical-plantfacilities in a manner and in accordance with a
schedule that will serve to provide a safe, functional, and aesthetically pleasing environment.
2. Preventative-maintenarcePMs will be scheduled, performed and documented in accordance
with environmental-unitinstructionPM procedures set incerperated-in the CMMS.

D. PROCEDURE:
1. Each month,




| Engineering Manual — General Administrative
Preventative Maintenance
Page 2 of 4

list of PMs that he is responsible to complete by assigned due dates.
2. The Eengineer conducts aninspestion-of-each environmental-unitPM scheduled-fer by the due
date and in accordance with the procedure ||sted in CMMSmaintenanee.

Once the PM is completed an Engineer logs the
results in the CMMS and notifies the Supervisor in case an issue had benen identified.
3:4. In case of failure, the Supervisor will assess the situation and if necessary will enforce
and document Interim Life Safety Measure (ILSM) or Interim Utility Safety Measure (IlUSM)
to keep the occupants safe.

E. ATTACHMENTS:

| 1. Attachment 1 — Items Generally Included in Preventative Maintenance But Not Limited To.

82



| Engineering Manual — General Administrative
Preventative Maintenance
Page 3 of 4

83



| Engineering Manual — General Administrative
Preventative Maintenance
Page 4 of 4

| ATTACHMENT 12 -
ITEMS GENERALLY INCLUDED IN PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE BUT NOT LIMITED TO:

| Automatic Transfer Switches — Emergency Power
Baby cribs
Bassinets

’ s
Central Plant Equipment
Door latch tensions
Doors (manually operated & auto)
Drinking fountains
Electrical outlets / system
Electrical Beds
Elesirosautery

' Elevators

Enzyme treatment drains

Exam tables

Exit lighting

Eye washers

Fire Alarm Systems

Fire Sprinkler Systems

Floor and roof drains

General lighting

Generators

Gurneys

Heaters

HVAC

Ice Machines

Mechanical beds

Medical gas outlets

Medical vacuum outlets

Motorized tables

Morgue table

Non-electrical food carts (and electrical)

Nurse-call system

OR lamps

Patient lifts

Patient scales

Plaster traps

Portable exam lamp

Portable heat iamps

| Refrigerators (medical & non-medical storage)
Heoom-turaivre

Room grounding

Sewers

Shawers

Signs and lighting

Sl

Trosiers

Ultrasonic-cleaners{smalh

Wialls

Warming cabinets

Water temperatures

Wheel/chairs

X-ray view boxes




@‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

ENGINEERING
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE

SUBJECT: Routine Hospital Rounds

ISSUE DATE: 11/87

REVIEW DATE(S):

REVISION DATE(S): 10/94, 1/97, 5/00, 5/03, 6/06, 6/09, 8/11, 6/12
Department Approval Date(s): 03/16
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 03/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. POLICY:

1. Routine rounds will be made at the beginning of each shift, by the Plant Operaterof-Engineering
ernOperator on shift.

2. Commence tour of hospital.

3. Make a visual check of boiler room. Check the water level in the condensate return tank. Normal
operating level should be maintained. Check boiler feed pumps noting any unusual conditions.
Check the water level of each boiler. Conduct an operational check test of low-water cut off.
Record the steam pressure of operating boiler. Test and record the boiler water softener to

waertan o cneracord lomparaitre,

54. Check mechanical equipment.-space Operation of exhaust fEans-operation, chillers, domestic
and heating hot water circulating pumpspumps, cooling towers, air compressors,-and air
handlers and record any discrepancies.

6-5. Return to Engineering office with a list of any discrepancies noted erreseived-during your
inspection. Make proper entries in the Daily Journal-ard-on-the-operationlog.

85



5 This copy of the procedure is
@ Tri-City Medical Center with TRACKED CHANGES.

Oceanside, California

ENGINEERING
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE

SUBJECT: Scope of Service

ISSUE DATE: 11/87

REVIEW DATE(S):

REVISION DATE(S): 9/94, 1/97, 5/00, 5/03, 6/06, 2/09, 8/11, 6/12
Department Approval Date(s): 03/16
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 03/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. PURPOSE.

1. To define the scope of services provided by the Engineering Department in an effort to create a
safe and quality environment for patient care, visitors and employees.

B. POLICY:

1. in an effort to comply with all regulatory agencies while ensuring minimal-risk-ervirorment-to-the
patient-safe and quality environment, the Engineering —Department will be responsible for the
condition and function of theall of the hospitals-physicat-plant facilities, including all utilities and

Engineering equipment. All areas-of the hespitalfacilities and equipment therein, are inspected
and maintained asEnvirormental-Units.-in accordance with the Computerized Maintenance

Management System (CMMS).

86



Engineering Manual
Scope of Service
Page 2 of 2

6-3.

8&:5.

7.

limited to the following:

a.
b.
C.
d.
e.
f.
g.
h.
i.
j.
k.
1.
m.
n.
0.

Central Plant EquipmentMain%enaéee—and—Fepa#—ef—Gelter,—ATGA

Generators and Automatic Transfer Switches
Fire Alarm and Fire Suppression Equipment
Elevators

HVAC

Steam Equipment

Ice Machines

Water Fountains

Eye Wash Stations

Drench Showers

Exit Lights

Lighting

Power Distribution Equipment

Domestic Water Equipment

Other Engineering/Building equipment not listed here. Full list of equipment is
available at the Engineering Department.

T

Movement of furniture and equipment is provided as follows:

a. Performed by the Environmental Services Department.

Key and lock services are provided by Engineering.

Service manuals for patient care and other equipment maintained by Engineering are kept on file
in theis Engineering Ddepartment.

User/Operator instructions are on file in the department in which the equipment is used and by
Engineering.

Construction Projects Services are provided by the Engineering Department.

87



@ 1. _ CLEAN COPY OF THIS
Tri-City Medical Center | PROCEDURE.

Oceanside, California

ENGINEERING
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE

SUBJECT:

ISSUE DATE:

Scope of Service

11/87

REVIEW DATE(S):
REVISION DATE(S): 9/94, 1/97, 5/00, 5/03, 6/06, 2/09, 8/11, 6/12

Department Approval Date(s): 03/16
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 03/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):

Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A

PURPOSE:

1.

To define the scope of services provided by the Engineering Department in an effort to create a
safe and quality environment for patient care, visitors and employees.

POLICY:

1.

o ks

In an effort to comply with all regulatory agencies while ensuring safe and quality environment,
the Engineering Department will be responsible for the condition and function of all of the
hospital facilities, including all utilities and Engineering equipment. All of the facilities and
equipment therein, are inspected and maintained in accordance with the Computerized
Maintenance Management System (CMMS).

Equipment maintained by the Engineering Department includes but is not limited to the following:
Central Plant Equipment

Generators and Automatic Transfer Switches

Fire Alarm and Fire Suppression Equipment

Elevators

HVAC

Steam Equipment

Ice Machines

Water Fountains

Eye Wash Stations

Drench Showers

Exit Lights

Lighting

Power Distribution Equipment

Domestic Water Equipment

Other Engineering/Building equipment not listed here. Full list of equipment is available
at the Engineering Department.

Movement of furniture and equipment is provided as follows:

a. Performed by the Environmental Services Department.

Key and lock services are provided by Engineering.

Service manuals for patient care and other equipment maintained by Engineering are kept on file
in the Engineering Department.

User/Operator instructions are on file in the department in which the equipment is used and by
Engineering.

Construction Projects Services are provided by the Engineering Department.

o5 3TATTI@me A0 oY

88



(C‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

ENGINEERING
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE

SUBJECT: Staff Meetings

ISSUE DATE: 4/90

REVIEW DATE(S):

REVISION DATE(S): 9/94, 1/97, 5/00, 5/03, 6/06, 6/09, 8/11, 6/12
Department Approval Date(s): 03/16
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 03/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. PURPOSE:
1. To establish time and attendance requirements for staff meetings.

B. PROCEDURE:

1. Departmental meetings will be as follows:
a. Supervisors on an as needed basis.
b. All department meetings will be conducted monthly.
2, Division meetings will be as follows (or on-an as needed basis):

a. Projects - Weekly.
b. Building Engineering - Plan-of the-Bay{RODB}—twice-WweeKly.
C. Plant Engineering - Plan-of the Bay-(PODB}—twice-Wweekly.

C. POLICY:
1. Departmental staff meetings will be held, as posted monthly, in the Division Shops or designated
class room.
2. All staff on duty at TCMC will be expected to attend. -Copies of the meeting minutes will be

placed-in-memeo-boek-forreviewemailed for review and it is the responsibility of all personnel to
review and comment on any discrepancies by the given deadlineand-sign. After the
deadline the meeting minutes will be considered as archived.

The agenda of the meetings will be determined by input from all employees.

The meeting will be conducted by the appropriate individual or his designee.

W

89



(c‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

ENGINEERING
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE

SUBJECT: Statement of Accountability and Responsibility

ISSUE DATE: 11/87

REVIEW DATE(S):

REVISION DATE(S): 9/94, 1/97, 5/00, 5/03, 6/06, 2/09, 8/11, 6/12
Department Approval Date(s): 3/16
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 3/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. PURPOSE:

1. To describe the hierarchy of accountability and responsibility within the Engineering Department
and that between the department and hospital administration.

B. POLICY:
1. The Engineering Department inclusive of Building Engineering, Plant Operations and Projects is

l the responsibility of the Director of Facilities.-Managerof EngineeringBepartment: -It is the
responsibility of this individual to ensure that all the divisions of the Engineering Department
operate as efficiently and effectively as practicable, work cooperatively with other hospital
departments toward achieving its goals and objectives and meets the applicable standards and
regulations of the accrediting and licensing bodies.

l 2. In carrying out these responsibilities, the Facilities Manger-Director ef-Engineering Department

is directly accountable to the Chief Operating Officer.-threugh-a-reperingrelationship-with-the
SrDirectorof-Support-Sendces-

90



(C‘J) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

MEDICAL STAFF POLICY MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 7/01 SUBJECT: Suspension for Delinquent Medical
Records & Fine Process

REVISION DATE: 3/05, 4/06, 3/07, 7/07, 3/08, 9/09, POLICY NUMBER: 8710 - 519
10/14; 3/15; 2/16

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 02/16
i k 4418
Professional Affairs Committee Approval:
Board of Directors Approval: 04/15
A. POLICY:
1. It is the policy of Tri-City Medical Center and its Medical Staff that all medical records are

completed in a timely manner, in accordance with Medical Staff Policy 8710-518, Medical Record
Documentation Requirements, applicable laws, and accreditation standards.

B. PROCEDURE:

1. Applicable TCMC departments shall enforce pre-procedure requirements for History and Physical
exam, as outlined in Medical Staff Policy 8710-518, Medical Record Documentation
Requirements.

2. In order to facilitate timely medical record completion and appropriate practitioner notification, the
TCMC IT Department shall develop and implement such automated notification mechanisms as
requested by the Medical Records/HIM Department.

3. The Medical Records/HIM Department is responsible for reviewing medical records and
identifying deficiencies of dictations and signatures, as outlined in Medical Record Documentation
Requirements.

4. The practitioner is responsible for identifying any error(s) in assigned dictations/signatures by
“refusing” the item within the Cerner Message Center, and indicating the appropriate practitioner
if possible.

5. The Medical Records/HIM Department will run a weekly report to identify dictations and
signatures that are not complete following patient discharge.

a. A letter under the Chief of Staff's signature will be initiated to each practitioner weekly
when the practitioner has any deficiencies aged 7 days from discharge. A second
communication will be sent at 10 days post discharge.

6. Each week the Medical Records/HIM Department will submit to the Chief of Staff (via the Medical
Staff Office) a list of verified deficiencies.

7. The Medical Staff Office shall:

a. Call the physician to give verbal notice of the impending suspension.
b. Prepare and send a written Notice of Automatic Limited Suspension to the physician.
8. Limited suspension shall apply to the practitioner’s right to admit, treat or to provide services to

new patients in the hospital, but shall not affect the right to continue to care for a patient the
practitioner has already admitted or has scheduled to treat or to perform any invasive procedure.
Obligations to fulfill ED On-Call duties as per existing schedule shall remain in effect.

9. Practitioners whose privileges have been suspended for delinquent records may admit patients
only in life threatening situations, when no other physician of the appropriate specialty is
available.

10. In the case of a patient care emergency, the suspension may be lifted by the Chief of Staff or

his/her designee, otherwise the suspension shall continue until the medical records are complete.

91



Medical Staff Policy Manual
Suspension for Delinquent Medical Records ~ 8710-519
Page 2 of 3

11. If the physician is on vacation or has an illness when his or her records become delinquent, with
Chief of Staff approval, such physician shall have five (5) days of returning to practice from
vacation or illness to complete the records.

C. MEDICAL STAFF FINES FOR DELINQUENT MEDICAL RECORD DICTATION

1. Purpose:
a. To provide a Policy and Procedure for implementation and ongoing enforcement of
fines for Medical Staff members with delinquent medical record dictation.
2. Definition Of Terms For Fine Process:
a. Delinquent Dictation: A medical record is considered “delinquent” 14 calendar days

after discharge, however, for this purpose fines will only be imposed for “dictations
only”, i.e. H&P, Op Reports, Dischargeand Discharge Summary.

b. Limited Suspension: A Limited Suspension permits the practitioner to continue to
care for a patient he/she is already treating in the hospital or has scheduled to treat
prior to the date of the imposed suspension.

c. Fines: A fine of $10.00 will be imposed and billed to any practitioner who appears
on the suspension list for each delinquent dictation. The $10.00 fine will be
compounded weekly if not completed.

3. Policy And Procedure:

a. Each Monday, prior to suspension, Medical Records sends Medical Staff office a
list of physicians with delinquent dictation(s). Medical Staff office notifies the
practitioner of the delinquent dictations indicating that the delinquent dictation(s)
must be completed by the following Wednesday or a $10 per each delinquent
dictation will be assessed.

b. Medical Staff suspends each Wednesday. Physicians with delinquent dictation(s)
will be billed $10 per delinquent report via the Medical Staff Department.

c. Fines are due and payable when the practitioner receives a bill. (Physicians must
notify Medical Records prior to leaving on vacation in order to be considered
“exempt” from the fining process during their absence from the facility.)

d. Loss of privileges/membership will result in the followmg circumstances:

i. If, at the time of reappointment, the practitioner is found to owe outstanding
fines, the application for reappointment will be considered “incomplete”;

iii. If the physician is found owing a fine for delinquent medical records for a
period of 6 months or more;

1) The practitioner will be sent a certified letter, including a copy of this
Policy/ Procedure, which states that “failure to pay the outstanding
fine, within twenty-one days of the date of the final notice, will result
in the automatic relinquishment of his/her membership”.

2) The letter will give the practitioner an opportunity to forward a written
response, within seven days of the date of the final notice, to be
considered at the Medical Executive Committee meeting.

3) The outcome of the deliberations/decision determined at the Medical
Executive Committee meeting will be forwarded to the practitioner in
question via certified mail. Should the practitioner fail to submit a
letter for consideration at the Medical Executive Committee meeting
or after consideration of such a letter, if it is determined at the
Medical Executive Committee meeting that the practitioner does owe
the fine, the payment of such fine is due and payable on the date
identified in the first notice. A practitioner who has failed to pay the
outstanding fine will be considered to have automatically
relinquished his/her medical staff privileges and membership at Tri-
City Medical Center. If the practitioner wishes to reapply to the staff
he/she will be required to pay the full application fee plus the total of
any outstanding fines owed for delinquent medical record dictation.

92



Medical Staff Policy Manual
Suspension for Delinquent Medical Records — 8710-519
Page 3 of 3

G-D.

e. The monies collected from this process will be added to the Medical Staff Checking
account and used as determined by the Medical Executive Committee on behalf and
in support of the Medical Staff.

MEDICAL STAFF SUSPENSION MONITORING:

1.

The Medical Staff Office shall notify Medical Records/HIM, IT, Surgery, Administration, Admitting,
Cardiology and Radiology of the automatic suspension.

a. Each of these departments is responsible for enforcing the suspension.

b. Any questions shall be directed to the Chief of Staff via the Medical Staff Office.

2. The Medical Records/HIM Department shall notify the Medical Staff Office when a suspended
practitioner has completed all deficiencies.

3. The Medical Staff Office shall notify the practitioner and applicable departments that the
suspension has been lifted.

4, Days on suspension shall be tracked in the Medical Staff's credentialing database and
considered at the time of OPPE and reappointment.

5. The Medical Executive Committee will serve as the intermediary in resolving
suspension/delinquency status questions from physicians and will assist the Medical Records
Department in communications with practitioners who have disputes regarding the actions of this
policy.

6. Practitioners indicating an intent to resign will be advised to complete all outstanding dictations
and signatures before departure, as failure to do so will make them ineligible for “good standing”
affiliation verifications.

REFERENCES:

1. Medical Staff P&P 8710-518: Medical Record Documentation Requirements

2. Medical Staff Bylaws: Article VI, § 6.4-4

93



)

Eg IFI-CIfy Viedical Center

Oceanside,California

WOMEN'S AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES MANUAL - NICU

‘C‘? Tri-City Medical Center

Women's and NewbornGChildren's Services Manual -

NICU

PROCEDURE:

PRIMARY NURSE ASSIGNMENT

Purpose:

patient and their family.

the NICU infant and family.

Registered Nurse.

. To promote continuity and efficiency of care in order to optimize outcomes for the
. To promote developmentally age appropriate, individualized, family-centered care for

. To promote and increase family satisfaction and enhance morale of the NICU

SUBJECT— PRIMARY-NURSE-ASSIGNMENT

ISSUE DATE: 9/40— REVISION-DATE: 6/41,8/12
3 . E] LILE ]

A. STANDARD OF PRACTICE:

1. Nurses shall provide care in a manner that is developmentally age appropriate, individualized,
and family centered.

2. Nurses shall provide care in a manner which maximizes continuity, efficiency and optimal
outcomes.

cB. POLICY:

1. All infants with an expected stay greater than 7 days may be assigned a primary nurse.

2. Any qualified Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU) Registered Nurse (RN) may volunteer to
serve as primary nurse to any unassigned, primary-qualified infant who does not have a primary
nurse within the first 48-hours of stay.

3. During the 48 hours after admission of the primary-qualified infant, any qualified NICU RN may
sign up to be primary nurse to the infant, unless that RN is already serving as primary nurse to
another patient.

4. At 48 hours of stay, if no qualified NICU RN has volunteered to serve as primary nurse for the

infant, the Supervisor or designeeAssistant-Nurse-Manager(ANM) will facilitate the assignment

of a primary nurse to the patient. The following criteria will serve as guidelines in the assignment

of a primary nurse to a specific patient:

a.
b.
c.

b-d.

Must work a minimum of 5 shifts in a pay period on a regular basis (FTE > 0.8).
Must have a minimum of six month’s experience as a NICU RN.
Must be a Tri-City Medical Center staff member.

a—Fhe RN-must-meetthe qualifications-stated-in-C:-5,-below:

The RN must not currently be serving as primary n

urse to another patient.

Department Review

Division of
Neonatology

Pharmacy and
Therapeutics

Medical Executive
Committee

Professional Affairs
Committee

Board of Directors

12/15

n/a

n/a

n/a

6/11; 8/12

04



Women and Newborn Services Manual- NICU
| Primary Gare-Nurse Assignment

Page 2 of 3

6-5.

| 9.8.

e-e. The assignment will be rotated, with the qualified NICU RN who has had the longest break

from serving as a primary nurse preferentially assigned to the next infant qualifying for
primary nursing, unless another qualified NICU RN voluntarily chooses to serve within 48
hours after the infant’'s admission.

a-f. If the NICU RN who is first in the rotation is not on duty, and is to be off from work for
more than three days following the assignment, the next NICU RN in the rotation will be
assigned to the patient.

e-g. Itis acceptable to “pass over” an RN under special circumstances with the consent of the
supervisorANM/nurse manager.

It is the responsibility of the primary nurse to:

a. Evaluate the needs of the infant and family, including teaching/learning issues.

b. Formulate, in conjunction with the multidisciplinary team and the family, an individualized
plan of care, mcluswe of short—term and dlscharge goals, for the mfant and famlly

d.c. Communicate plan of care to other caregivers; ensure plan is carried out.
e-d. Evaluate effectiveness of plan of care in achieving goals and alter plan of care as
needed.

g-e. Evaluate the need for family conferences at least every two weeks and prn. These are to
include at a minimum, one of the parents and/or primary caregiver, the attending
physician, the primary or associate nurse, and the infant’s social worker.

The primary nurse serves as primary to only one patient at the time, unless she/nhe chooses to

serve as primary nurse to two infants of a multiple birth.

The primary nurse may serve as associate nurse to one infant in addition to the infant for whom

they serve as primary nurse.

It is optimal that each infant who qualifies for primary nursing care will also have an associate

nurse on the shift opposite of the shift worked by the primary nurse (additional associate nurses

may also serve on the team as available and indicated).

The assomate nurse is a NICU RN who has successfully completed the NICU orlentatlon penod

| 4311.

| 14:12.

. The responsibilities of the associate nurse(s) are to:

Continue identification of problems and potential interventions.

Aid in evaluating the effectiveness of the plan.

Communicate the above to the primary nurse.

Carry out plan of care, including family teaching.

Support the plan of care with the family and other team members.

Serve as the primary nurse if the original primary nurse is not available for > 4 days.
Any RN caring for any patient in the NICU at any time is responsible for performing the
duties of an associate nurse except for that of consistently caring for a specific patient.
The primary nurse and the associate nurse(s), in this order, will be preferentially staffed with the
infant on whose team they are serving unless safe staffing of the NICU requires otherwise. A

000U

further exception may occur either when the team member requests a brief break from caring for

the infant or the primary nurse is assigned as relief charge.

I B.C. PROCEDURE:

1.

Supervisor and/or designeeAssistant-Nurse-Manager:

a. As each patient is admitted, determine the expected stay of the infant. If the expected stay

is greater than seven days:

i. Ask the admitting RN (if qualified), if they wish to be assigned as primary nurse to
the infant. If so, place the admitting RN’s name in the Kardex and primary nurse
board as pbrimarv nurse.

95



Women and Newborn Services Manual- NICU
| Primary Care-Nurse Assignment

Page 3 0of 3

b. If at 48-hours after admission the patient does not yet have a primary nurse signed up,
facilitate the assignment of a primary nurse to the patient.

C. Post the primary nurse’s name in the patient kardex and primary nurse board.

d. Ensure that the primary nurse is preferentially assigned to bedside care of their primary
patient whenever safe unit staffing needs allow.

e. The newly assigned primary nurse should be assigned to bedside care of the

primary patient on the first working day after being designated as primary nurse.

2. Bedside/Relief Nurse:
a. Explain the concept of primary nursing to the family if not already done and tell them the
day when the primary nurse will be back to work.
3. Primary Nurse:
a. Review the infant’s chart, discuss the case with the team, and initiate contact with the
parents no later than the first day on duty after being assigned the infant as primary.
b. Formulate an initial plan of care in conjunction with the team and the family.
| c. Continue duties as outlined abovein-C—5-abeve.

ED. REFERENCES:

1. Miles, M.S. & Holditch-Davis, D. (1997). Parenting the prematurely born child: Pathways of
influence. Seminars in perinatology, 21 (3), 254-266.

2. Scharer, K. & Brooks, G. (1994). Mothers of chronically ill neonates and primary nurses in the
NICU: Transfer of care. Neonatal Network, 13 (5), 37-46.

3. Smith, S.J. (1987). Primary nursing in the NICU: A parent’s perspective. Neonatal Network,
February, 25-27.

96



(C‘? Tri-City Medical Center

Women and Newborn Services (WNS)

PROCEDURE:

INSTRUMENT CLEANING STERH-E PROCESS AND TRANSPORT TO STERILE
PROCESSING DEPARTMENT (SPD)ING OF-WCSINSTRUMENTS-

Purpose:

To outline the procedure and individuals responsible forfor the rstrumentinitial
instrumentation cleaning process and transport to SPD. Instrument
decontamination, final cleaning and sterilization occur in SPD and not at the unit
level. Once sterilized, instrument packs and instrument trays are picked up in
SPD for unit use.

Equipment:

1. An identified enclosed case cart to transport dirty instruments to SPD

2. An identified case cart to transport sterilized instrument packs and trays from
SPD to the unit.

3. Appropriate sized containers and/or basins, with lids to transport dirty
instruments to SPD.

4. Appropriate enzymatic cleaning product

5. Protective personal equipment Fwe-case-cariscontainersforsingles-and-dirty
lstereris

PROCEDURE:

1.

All instruments from the Women’s and NewbornChildren's Services (WNS) unit will be initially
cleaned on the unit but then transported to SPD for further decontainment, packaging, and

sterlllzatlon steﬂhzed—a:rd—paelaaged—by—SPD—

WNS staff shall adhere to standard unlversal precautlons to mclude eye protectlon as

indicated.

WNS staff is responsible for the initial instrument cleaning process which includes

transferring the instruments to the biohazard room for initial cleaning, as soon as possible

after use, and coating the instruments generously with an approved enzymatic gel or
spray while in a basin or container that can be securely covered.

a. For grossly contaminated instruments, the staff shall remove tissue, clots, and/or
gross blood, with gauze or rinse lightly with water before applying the enzymatic
product.

The containers with the dirty instruments will be placed into a case cart, located in the

biohazard room in the Labor and Delivery (L&D) Operating Room spaces and transported

to SPD in an enclosed case cart, with a biohazard label on the outside, for eventual
processing at least once a shift, at a minimum.

a. If dirty instrument sets become more than four in number, efforts shall be made by
the L&D staff to transport the case cart to SPD immediately, so the instrument kits/
trays are cleaned, processed, sterilized, and returned in a timely manner.

The L&D Techs/ staff will pick up clean/sterilized, packaged instruments and trays from

SPD at least once a shift, or more often if needed, and transport the sterile gear back to

the unit in a “clean” case cart

The sterilized trays and instrument packs will be stored in a clean supply room until

utilized for patient care.

The SPD manager shall be notified for any problems encountered related to the instrument

cleanmg, packaglng, and/or sterlllzatlon process by callmg 760- 908 3367 related

Department
Review

Department of
OB/GYN

Department of
Pediatrics

Pharmacy and
Therapeutics

Infection
Control
Committee

Medical
Executive
Committee

Professional
Affairs
Committee

Board of
Directors

01/16

n/a

nla

n/a

03/16

n/a

.



Women and Newborn Services (WNS)

Prosedure-Instrument Cleaning Process and Transport to SPD Fitle
Page 2 of 2

B. REFERENCES:

1. AORN (2015). Guidelines for Perioperative Practice, 2015 Edition, Denver, CO.
2. ACOG & AAP (2012). Guidelines for Perinatal Care, 7" Edition, Washington DC.

98



TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
PHARMACY AND THERAPEUTICS COMMITTEE

Request for Formulary Status Evaluation:

Admission {x } Deletion { }
Date: 09/02/2015 Requestor: Dr. David Spiegel
Trade Name: Entresto Generic Name: Sacubitril/Valsartan

Dosage form(s): Tablet, Oral: 24/26mg, 49/51mg, 97/103mg

Indications:

1. Reduce the risk of cardiovascular death and hospitalization for heart failure in patients with
chronic heart failure (NYHA Class II-IV) and reduced ejection fraction.
Efficacy:

Sacubitril/valsartan was superior to enalapril in reducing the risk of the combined endpoint cardiovascular
death or hospitalization for heart failure, based on a time-to-event analysis (hazard ratio [HR]: 0.80, 95%
confidence interval [CI], 0.73, 0.87, p<0.0001). The treatment effect reflected a reduction in both
cardiovascular death and heart failure hospitalization. Sudden death accounted for 45% of cardiovascular
deaths, followed by pump failure, which accounted for 26%. Sacubitril/valsartan also improved overall
survival (HR 0.84; 95% CI [0.76, 0.93], p=0.0009). This finding was driven entirely by a lower incidence
of cardiovascular mortality in sacubitril/valsartan.

Safety:
Propensity for medication error: Low

Abuse potential: None

Sentinel event potential:

1) Angioedema: In the double-blind period of PARADIGM-HF, 0.5% of patients treated
with sacubitril/valsartan had angioedema

2) Hypotension: . In the double-blind period of PARADIGM-HF, 18% of patients treated
with sacubitril/valsartan reported hypotension as an adverse events, with hypotension
reported as a serious adverse event in approximately 1.5% of patients in both treatment
arms

3) Impaired Renal Function: In the double-blind period of PARADIGM-HF, 5% of
patients in both the sacubitril/valsartan and enalapril groups reported renal failure as an
adverse event

4) Hyperkalemia: In the double-blind period of PARADIGM-HF, 12% of patients
treated with sacubitril/valsartan reported hyperkalemia as an adverse event

Cost comparison with similar Formulary products: N/A

99



Other considerations:

Combined inhibition of the renin-angiotensin system and neprilysin provides for a novel class of agents
with potential for therapeutic benefit in patients with HFrEF. Sacubitril/valsartan was found to be superior
to enalapril in reducing the risk of death and hospitalization for heart failure. Additionally
sacubitril/valsartan was well tolerated, however given the run-in study design, the adverse reaction rates
reported are likely lower than expected in practice.

Recommendation:

1. Add sacubitril/valsartan to TCMC formulary for the indication of reducing the risk of
cardiovascular death and hospitalization for heart failure in patients with chronic heart failure
(NYHA Class IO-IV) and reduced ejection fraction

2. Restrict prescribing of this agent to the Cardiology Service for both new and established patients

Process/Plan to monitor Patient Response:
1) Monitor blood pressure and electrolytes at baseline throughout therapy
2) Patients to be primarily monitored on an outpatient basis by a cardiologist (heart failure
functional status assessment)

References:

1. Sacubitril/valsartan (EntrestoTM) [package insert]. East Hanover, NJ. Novartis
Pharmaceuticals Corp. 2015.

2. Solomon SD, Zile M, Pieske B, et al. The angiotensin receptor neprilysin inhibitor LCZ696
in heart failure with preserved ejection fraction: a phase 2 double-blind randomized
controlled trial. Lancet 2012; 380:387-95

3. Iso S, Stoh M, Tamaki Y, et al. Safety and efficacy of LCZ696, a first-in-class angiotensin
receptor neprilysin inhibitor, in Japanese patients with hypertension and renal dysfunction.
Hypertension Research 2105; 38:269-275

4, McMurray JJ, Packer M, Desai AS, Gong J, Lefkowitz MP, Riskala AR, et al. Angiotensin
neprilysin inhibition versus enalapril in heart failure. N Engl J Med. 2014 Sept 11;371:
993-1004.

100



Date: Time event recognized:

Time Code Blue Team arrived:

Location:

Pre code Events:

Affix Patient Label

101

Resp Pulse Rhythm Bolus / Dose / Route Code status: Full Code [_] No Code [}
@ S
< 2 L= ED Physician arrival time:
» ~— Q —— W m ")
| @ w2 ) o o " |
| S| gk ] g E E|o|S E
ol 81T 8|5 3 s |2l e|E|3 | &
S| S|E|8] Blcle|s|2]21l2 |3
1B o] &5 8 el S| 2|s| 2|5 |2|E |4
=B N e N o £ | 3 e jlo| &) 2 E | = o
R A a Elal 2| S1eE| S| 5| el|3 3 Comments:
Time | ¥ < w 7] (& m (14 (=] < < < W w |22 <
U
(W
Q
.
Q
|
Q
U
|
(]
g
Q
Q
Time compressions started: Time of first defibrillation.______ Time of first assisted breath:
Time of intubation: ETT size/depth: ETCO, confirmation of ETT placement [_]

Debriefing/Eval completed? [[]

Recorder's Name/initials:

Emergency Event form completed by RN and RCP? [}

1# Code Team RN's Name/Initials:

2™ Code Team RN’s Name/initials:
Primary RN Name/initials:

/
/
/
/

RCP’s Printed Name/initials:

Responding Physician’s Printed Name:
Responding Physician's Signature:

D
(C‘? Tri-City Medical Center

4002 Vista Way * Oceanside « CA « 92056

CARDIOPULMONARY ARREST
RECORD

N AMAAN I

A01N-1005



